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Estate Number: 31-458352 
Court File Number: 31-458352 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

(IN BANKRUPTCY AND INSOLVENCY) 
COMMERCIAL LIST 

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE NOTICE OF INTENTION TO 
MAKE A PROPOSAL OF DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

OF THE CITY OF TORONTO IN THE PROVINCE OF ONTARIO 

Estate Number: 31-2282778 
Court File Number: 31-2282778 

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE NOTICE OF INTENTION TO 
MAKE A PROPOSAL OF DUNDEE OIL AND GAS LIMITED 

OF THE CITY OF TORONTO IN THE PROVINCE OF ONTARIO 

NOTICE OF MOTION 

DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP ("DELP") and DUNDEE OIL AND 

GAS LIMITED ("DOGL"), will make a motion to the Court on Tuesday, 13th  February, 2018, at 

10:00 a.m., or as soon after that time as the motion can be heard, at 330 University Avenue, 

Toronto, Ontario. 

PROPOSED METHOD OF HEARING: The motion is to be heard orally. 

THE MOTION IS FOR: 

1. An Order in form attached as Schedule "A"; and; 

2. Such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem just and equitable. 

THE GROUNDS FOR THE MOTION ARE: 

000 

1. Grounds set forth in the Fourth Report dated 7 February 2018. 
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2. Such further and other grounds as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court may 

accept. 

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE will be used at the hearing of the 

Application: 

1. The Fourth Report dated 7 February 2018; and 

2. Such evidence as this Honourable Court may permit. 

Date: 8 February 2018 GOWLING WLG (CANADA) LLP 
Barristers and Solicitors 
1 First Canadian Place 
100 King Street West, Suite 1600 
Toronto, ON M5X 1G5 

E. Patrick Shea (LSUC No. 39655K) 
Tel: (416) 369-7399 
Fax: (416) 862-7661 

Solicitors for the DELP and DOGL 
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SCHEDULE "A" 

Court File No. Ow 

THE HONOURABLE 

JUSTICE 

ONTARIO 

SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

COMMERCIAL LIST 

TUESDAY, THE 13th  

DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2018 

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES' CREDITORS ARIUNGEMENT ACT, R.S.C. 1985, c. 

C-36, AS AMENDED 

AND IN THE MATTER OF A PLAN OF COMPROMISE OR ARRANGEMENT OF 

DUNDEE OIL AND GAS LIMITED 

INITIAL ORDER 

THIS APPLICATION, made by Dundee Oil and Gas Limited ("DOGL") on its behalf 

and as general partner on behalf of Dundee Energy Limited Partnership ("DELP", together the 

"Debtors"), pursuant to the Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, as 

amended (the "CCAA") was heard this day at 330 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario. 

ON READING the affidavit of Lucie Presot sworn February 8, 2018 and the Exhibits 

thereto, and on being advised that the secured creditors who are likely to be affected by the 

charges created herein were given notice, and on hearing the submissions of counsel for the 

Debtors, National Bank of Canada, FTI Consulting Canada Inc. ("FTI") in its capacity as the 

Proposed Monitor (the "Monitor"), and on reading the consent of FTI to act as the Monitor and 

the Fourth Report of the Proposal Trustee dated February 7, 2018, 
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SERVICE 

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the time for service of the Notice of Application and the 

Application Record is hereby abridged and validated so that this Application is properly 

returnable today and hereby dispenses with further service thereof. 

CONTINUANCE UNDER THE CCAA 

2. THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES that DOGL is a company to which the 

CCAA applies and DELP shall enjoy the benefits of the protection and authorizations provided 

to DOGL by this Order. 

3. THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES that effective February 13, 2018, the 

Debtors' restructuring proceedings (the "Proposal Proceedings") commenced under Part III of 

the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, R.S.C. 1985 c. B-3 (as amended) (the "BIA") are hereby 

taken up and continued under the CCAA and that as of such date, the provisions of Part III of the 

BIA shall have no further application to the Debtors, save that any and all steps, agreements and 

procedures validly taken, done or entered into by the Debtors during the Proposal Proceedings 

shall remain valid and binding notwithstanding the continuation of the Proposal Proceedings and 

the commencement of the within CCAA proceedings, including, without limitation (a) the sale 

solicitation process ("BIA SSP") approved in the Order of Regional Senior Justice Morawetz 

dated August 16, 2017, as amended (the "August 16 Order"); (b) any assignment of leases or 

other agreements given or entered into by the Debtors during the Proposal Proceedings as 

amended from time to time; and (c) any agreements entered into with Nadro Marine Services 

Limited. 

4. THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES that all capitalized terms not otherwise 

defined in this Order have the meanings attributed to them in the August 16 Order. 

5. THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES that, subject to further order of this Court, 

all orders of the Court granted in the Proposal Proceedings shall continue to be in full force and 

effect, except to the extent that such orders are inconsistent with the terms of this Order or the 

CCAA. 
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6. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor is authorized and directed to continue to carry 

out and fulfill each provision of the August 16 Order that pertains to the Proposal Trustee 

including, without limitation, the BIA SSP. The Monitor shall have the benefit of all rights and 

protections granted to the Proposal Trustee under the August 16 Order in carrying out its terms 

and, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to "Proposal Trustee" in the August 16 

Order shall mean the Monitor from and after the date of this Order, except to the extent 

inconsistent with the terms of this Order or the CCAA. 

PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT 

7. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Debtors shall have the authority to file and may, subject 

to further order of this Court, file with this Court a plan of compromise or arrangement 

(hereinafter referred to as the "Plan"). 

POSSESSION OF PROPERTY AND OPERATIONS 

8. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Debtors shall remain in possession and control of their 

current and future assets, undertakings and properties of every nature and kind whatsoever, and 

wherever situate including all proceeds thereof (the "Property"). Subject to further Order of this 

Court and compliance with the terms of the Forbearance Agreement (as defined below) and Cash 

Flow Statements (as defined in the Forbearance Agreement), the Debtors shall continue to carry 

on business in a manner consistent with the preservation of their business (the "Business") and 

Property. The Debtors are authorized and empowered to continue to retain and employ the 

employees, consultants, agents, experts, accountants, counsel and such other persons 

(collectively "Assistants") currently retained or employed by them, with liberty to retain such 

further Assistants as it deems reasonably necessary or desirable in the ordinary course of 

business or for the carrying out of the terms of this Order. 

9. THIS COURT ORDERS that, subject to the terms of the Forbearance Agreement that 

require the Debtors to comply with the Cash Flow Statements, the Debtors shall be entitled but 

not required to pay the following expenses whether incurred prior to or after this Order: 

(a) all outstanding and future wages, salaries, employee and pension benefits, vacation 

pay and expenses payable on or after the date of this Order, in each case incurred in 

3 



0006 

the ordinary course of business and consistent with existing compensation policies 

and arrangements; and 

(b) the fees and disbursements of any Assistants retained or employed by the Debtors in 

respect of these proceedings, at their standard rates and charges. 

10. THIS COURT ORDERS that, except as otherwise provided to the contrary herein and 

subject to the terms of the Forbearance Agreement that require the Debtors to comply with the 

Cash Flow Statements, the Debtors shall be entitled but not required to pay all reasonable 

expenses incurred by the Debtors in carrying on the Business in the ordinary course after this 

Order, and in carrying out the provisions of this Order, which expenses shall include, without 

limitation: 

(a) all expenses and capital expenditures reasonably necessary for the preservation of the 

Property or the Business including, without limitation, payments on account of 

insurance (including directors and officers insurance), maintenance and security 

services; and 

(b) payment for goods or services actually supplied to the Debtors following the date of 

this Order. 

11. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Debtors shall from and after the date of this Order 

remit, in accordance with legal requirements, or pay: 

(a) any statutory deemed trust amounts in favour of the Crown in right of Canada or of 

any Province thereof or any other taxation authority which are required to be 

deducted from employees' wages, including, without limitation, amounts in respect of 

(i) employment insurance, (ii) Canada Pension Plan, (iii) Quebec Pension Plan, and 

(iv) income taxes; 

(b) all goods and services or other applicable sales taxes (collectively, "Sales Taxes") 

required to be remitted by the Debtors in connection with the sale of goods and 

services by the Debtors, but only where such Sales Taxes are accrued or collected 

after the date of this Order, or where such Sales Taxes were accrued or collected prior 

4 
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to the date of this Order but not required to be remitted until on or after the date of 

this Order, and 

(c) any amount payable to the Crown in right of Canada or of any Province thereof or 

any political subdivision thereof or any other taxation authority in respect of 

municipal realty, municipal business or other taxes, assessments or levies of any 

nature or kind which are entitled at law to be paid in priority to claims of secured 

creditors and which are attributable to or in respect of the carrying on of the Business 

by the Debtors. 

12. THIS COURT ORDERS that until a real property lease is assigned or disclaimed in 

accordance with the CCAA, the Debtors shall pay all amounts constituting rent or payable as rent 

under real property leases (including, for greater certainty, common area maintenance charges, 

utilities and realty taxes and any other amounts payable to the landlord under the lease) or as 

otherwise may be negotiated between either Debtor, as applicable, and the landlord from time to 

time ("Rent"), for the period commencing from and including the date of this Order, in 

accordance with past practice or on the terms pursuant to the lease. On the date of the first of 

such payments, any Rent relating to the period commencing from and including the date of this 

Order shall also be paid. 

13. THIS COURT ORDERS that, except as specifically permitted herein or in the 

Forbearance Agreement, the Debtors are hereby directed, until further Order of this Court: (a) to 

make no payments of principal, interest thereon or otherwise on account of amounts owing by 

the Debtors to any of their creditors as of this date except such payments to the Lender; (b) to 

grant no security interests, trust, liens, charges or encumbrances upon or in respect of any of their 

Property; and (c) to not grant credit or incur liabilities except in the ordinary course of the 

Business. 

RESTRUCTURING 

14. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Debtors shall, subject to such requirements as are 

imposed by the CCAA and such covenants as may be contained in the Definitive Documents (as 

defined below), and with the prior written consent of the Lender, have the right to: 
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(a) permanently or temporarily cease, do wnsize or shut down any of their business or 

operations, 

(b) terminate the employment of such of their employees or temporarily lay off such of 

their employees as they deems appropriate; and 

(c) pursue all avenues of refinancing of their Business or Property, in whole or part, 

subject to prior approval of this Court being obtained before any material refinancing 

(for greater certainty, an assignment of the Lender's debt and security to another party 

shall not constitute a material refinancing requiring Court approval), 

all of the foregoing to permit the Debtors to proceed with an orderly restructuring of the Business 

(the "Restructuring"). 

15. THIS COURT ORDERS that, except in the case of offshore mineral leases, the Debtors 

shall provide each of the relevant landlords with notice of either Debtor's intention to remove 

any fixtures from any leased premises at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the intended 

removal. The relevant landlord shall be entitled to have a representative present in the leased 

premises to observe such removal and, if the landlord disputes the Debtors' entitlement to 

remove any such fixture under the provisions of the lease, such fixture shall remain on the 

premises and shall be dealt with as agreed between any applicable secured creditors, such 

landlord and the Debtors, or by further Order of this Court upon application by the Debtors on at 

least two (2) days notice to such landlord and any such secured creditors. If the Debtors disclaim 

the lease governing such leased premises in accordance with Section 32 of the CCAA, they shall 

not be required to pay Rent under such lease pending resolution of any such dispute (other than 

Rent payable for the notice period provided for in Section 32(5) of the CCAA), and the 

disclaimer of the lease shall be without prejudice to the Debtors' claim to the fixtures in dispute. 

16. THIS COURT ORDERS that if a notice of disclaimer is delivered pursuant to Section 32 

of the CCAA, then (a) during the notice period prior to the effective time of the disclaimer, the 

landlord may show the affected leased premises to prospective tenants during normal business 

hours, on giving the relevant Debtor and the Monitor 24 hours' prior written notice, and (b) at the 

effective time of the disclaimer, the relevant landlord shall be entitled to take possession of any 

such leased premises without waiver of or prejudice to any claims or rights such landlord may 

6 
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have against the Debtors in respect of such lease or leased premises, provided that nothing herein 

shall relieve such landlord of its obligation to mitigate any damages claimed in connection 

therewith. 

NO PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE DEBTORS OR THE PROPERTY 

17. THIS COURT ORDERS that, subject to paragraph 18(v) hereof, until and including 

March 13, 2018, or such later date as this Court may order (the "Stay Period"), no proceeding or 

enforcement process in any court or tribunal (each, a "Proceeding") shall be commenced or 

continued against or in respect of the Debtors or the Monitor, or affecting the Business or the 

Property, except with the written consent of the Debtors and the Monitor, or with leave of this 

Court, and any and all Proceedings currently under way against or in respect of the Debtors or 

affecting the Business or the Property are hereby stayed and suspended pending further Order of 

this Court. 

NO EXERCISE OF RIGHTS OR REMEDIES 

18. THIS COURT ORDERS that during the Stay Period, all rights and remedies of any 

individual, firm, corporation, governmental body or agency, or any other entities (all of the 

foregoing, collectively being "Persons" and each being a "Person") against or in respect of the 

Debtors or the Monitor, or affecting the Business or the Property, are hereby stayed and 

suspended except with the written consent of the Debtors and the Monitor, or leave of this Court, 

provided that nothing in this Order shall (i) empower the Debtors to carry on any business which 

the Debtors are not lawfully entitled to carry on, (ii) affect such investigations, actions, suits or 

proceedings by a regulatory body as are permitted by Section 11.1 of the CCAA, (iii) prevent the 

filing of any registration to preserve or perfect a security interest, (iv) prevent the registration of 

a claim for lien, or (v) prevent the Lender from exercising any rights or remedies in accordance 

with the Forbearance Agreement. 

19. THIS COURT ORDERS that DELP shall not be deemed to have made an assignment 

based on its failure to file a proposal with the official receiver notwithstanding s. 50.4(8) of the 

BIA. 
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NO INTERFERENCE WITH RIGHTS 

20. THIS COURT ORDERS that during the Stay Period, no Person shall discontinue, fail to 

honour, alter, interfere with, repudiate, terminate or cease to perform any right, renewal right, 

contract, agreement, licence or permit in favour of or held by the Debtors, except with the 

written consent of the Debtors and the Monitor, or leave of this Court. 

CONTINUATION OF SERVICES 

21. THIS COURT ORDERS that during the Stay Period, all Persons having oral or written 

agreements with the Debtors or statutory or regulatory mandates for the supply of goods and/or 

services, including without limitation all computer software, communication and other data 

services, centralized banking services, payroll services, insurance, transportation services, utility 

or other services to the Business or the Debtors, are hereby restrained until further Order of this 

Court from discontinuing, altering, interfering with or terminating the supply of such goods or 

services as may be required by the Debtors, and that the Debtors shall be entitled to the 

continued use of their current premises, telephone numbers, facsimile numbers, internet 

addresses and domain names, provided in each case that the normal prices or charges for all such 

goods or services received after the date of this Order are paid by the Debtors in accordance with 

normal payment practices of the Debtors or such other practices as may be agreed upon by the 

supplier or service provider and each of the Debtors and the Monitor, or as may be ordered by 

this Court. Dundee Corporation shall continue to make available all computer systems and other 

services provided to the Debtors in accordance with normal practices. 

NON-DEROGATION OF RIGHTS 

22. THIS COURT ORDERS that, notwithstanding anything else in this Order, no Person 

shall be prohibited from requiring immediate payment for goods, services, use of leased or 

licensed property or other valuable consideration provided on or after the date of this Order, nor 

shall any Person be under any obligation on or after the date of this Order to advance or re-

advance any monies or otherwise extend any credit to the Debtors. Nothing in this Order shall 

derogate from the rights conferred and obligations imposed by the CCAA. 
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PROCEEDINGS AGAINST DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

23. THIS COURT ORDERS that during the Stay Period, and except as permitted by 

subsection 11.03(2) of the CCAA, no Proceeding may be commenced or continued against any 

of the former, current or future directors or officers of the Debtors with respect to any claim 

against the directors or officers that arose before the date hereof and that relates to any 

obligations of the Debtors whereby the directors or officers are alleged under any law to be liable 

in their capacity as directors or officers for the payment or performance of such obligations, until 

a compromise or arrangement in respect of the Debtors, if one is filed, is sanctioned by this 

Court or is refused by the creditors of the Debtors or this Court. 

APPOINTMENT OF MONITOR 

24. THIS COURT ORDERS that FTI is hereby appointed pursuant to the CCAA as the 

Monitor, an officer of this Court, to monitor the business and financial affairs of the Debtors with 

the powers and obligations set out in the CCAA or set forth herein and that the Debtors and their 

shareholders, officers, directors, and Assistants shall advise the Monitor of all material steps 

taken by the Debtors pursuant to this Order, and shall co-operate fully with the Monitor in the 

exercise of its powers and discharge of its obligations and provide the Monitor with the 

assistance that is necessary to enable the Monitor to adequately carry out the Monitor's functions. 

25. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor, in addition to its prescribed rights and 

obligations under the CCAA, is hereby directed and empowered to: 

(a) monitor the Debtors' receipts and disbursements; 

(b) take all steps necessary to implement the BIA SSP including all steps required to 

close any sale transaction approved under the BIA SSP, in these proceedings or under 

the Proposal Proceedings; 

(c) report to the Lender on matters related to the Debtors' Business, Property or the BIA 

SSP; 
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(d) report to this Court at such times and intervals as the Monitor may deem appropriate 

with respect to matters relating to the Property, the Business, the BIA SSP and such 

other matters as may be relevant to the proceedings herein; 

(e) assist the Debtors, to the extent required by the Debtors, in their dissemination, to the 

Lender and its counsel as required by the Lender of financial and other information as 

agreed to between the Debtors and the Lender which may be used in these 

proceedings including reporting on a basis to be agreed with the Lender; 

(f) advise the Debtors in their preparation of the Debtors' cash flow statements and 

reporting required by the Lender, which information shall be reviewed with the 

Monitor and delivered to the Lender and its counsel on a periodic basis, but not less 

than weeldy, or as otherwise provided in the Forbearance Agreement or agreed to by 

the Lender; 

(g) subject to the prior consent of the Lender, advise the Debtors in their development of 

the Plan and any amendments to the Plan; 

(h) subject to the prior consent of the Lender, assist the Debtors, to the extent required by 

the Debtors, with the holding and administering of creditors' or shareholders' 

meetings for voting on the Plan; 

(i) have full and complete access to the Property, including the premises, books, records, 

data, including data in electronic form, and other financial documents of the Debtors, 

to the extent that is necessary to adequately assess the Debtors' business and financial 

affairs or to perform its duties arising under this Order; 

(j) be at liberty to engage independent legal counsel or such other persons as the Monitor 

deems necessary or advisable respecting the exercise of its powers and performance 

of its obligations under this Order; and 

(k) perform such other duties as are required by this Order or by this Court from time to 

time. 

10 
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26. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor shall not take possession of the Property and 

shall take no part whatsoever in the management or supervision of the management of the 

Business and shall not, by fulfilling its obligations hereunder or under the BIA SSP, be deemed 

to have taken or maintained possession or control of the Business or Property, or any part 

thereof. 

27. THIS COURT ORDERS that nothing herein contained shall require the Monitor to 

occupy or to take control, care, charge, possession or management (separately and/or 

collectively, "Possession") of any of the Property that might be environmentally contaminated, 

might be a pollutant or a contaminant, or might cause or contribute to a spill, discharge, release 

or deposit of a substance contrary to any federal, provincial or other law respecting the 

protection, conservation, enhancement, remediation or rehabilitation of the environment or 

relating to the disposal of waste or other contamination including, without limitation, the 

Canadian Environmental Protection Act, the Ontario Environmental Protection Act, the Ontario 

Water Resources Act, the Oil and Salt Resources Act, or the Ontario Occupational Health and 

Safety Act and regulations thereunder (the "Environmental Legislation"), provided however 

that nothing herein shall exempt the Monitor from any duty to report or make disclosure imposed 

by applicable Environmental Legislation. The Monitor shall not, as a result of this Order or 

anything done in pursuance of the Monitor's duties and powers under this Order, be deemed to be 

in Possession of any of the Property within the meaning of any Environmental Legislation, 

unless it is actually in possession. 

28. THIS COURT ORDERS that that the Monitor shall provide any creditor of the Debtors 

with information provided by the Debtors in response to reasonable requests for information 

made in writing by such creditor addressed to the Monitor. The Monitor shall not have any 

responsibility or liability with respect to the information disseminated by it pursuant to this 

paragraph. In the case of information that the Monitor has been advised by the Debtors is 

confidential, the Monitor shall not provide such information to creditors unless otherwise 

directed by this Court or on such terms as the Monitor and the Debtors may agree. 

29. THIS COURT ORDERS that, in addition to the rights and protections afforded the 

Monitor under the CCAA or as an officer of this Court, the Monitor shall incur no liability or 

obligation as a result of its appointment or the carrying out of the provisions of this Order or the 
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BIA SSP, save and except for any gross negligence or wilful misconduct on its part. Nothing in 

this Order shall derogate from the protections afforded the Monitor by the CCAA or any 

applicable legislation. 

30. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Proposal Trustee, counsel to the Proposal Trustee, the 

Monitor, counsel to the Monitor and counsel to the Debtors shall be paid their reasonable fees 

and disbursements, in each case at their standard rates and charges, by the Debtors as part of the 

costs of these proceedings. The Debtors are hereby authorized and directed to pay the accounts 

of the Proposal Trustee, counsel for the Proposal Trustee, the Monitor, counsel to the Monitor 

and counsel for the Debtors on a weekly basis or on such other basis as agreed between the 

Debtors and the applicable payee, with the consent of the Lender. 

31. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Proposal Trustee, counsel for the Proposal Trustee, the 

Monitor and counsel to the Monitor shall pass their accounts from time to time, and for this 

purpose the accounts of the Proposal Trustee, counsel for the Proposal Trustee, the Monitor and 

counsel to the Monitor are hereby referred to a judge of the Commercial List of the Ontario 

Superior Court of Justice. 

FORBEARANCE AGREEMENT 

32. THIS COURT ORDERS that paragraphs 17-21 of the August 16 Order approving the 

Forbearance Agreement as amended by a First Amending Agreement dated as of December 5, 

2017, a Second Amending Agreement dated as of December 19, 2017, a Third Amending 

Agreement and Waiver dated January 24, 2018, as amended and restated pursuant to a Second 

Amended and Restated Forbearance Agreement dated as of February 01-, 2018 (collectively, the 

"Forbearance Agreement") granting the Proposal DIP Charge (as defined below) and directing 

the Debtors to comply with the terms of the Forbearance Agreement continue in full force and 

effect. 

33. THIS COURT ORDERS that the execution, delivery, entry into, compliance with and 

performance by the Debtors of the Forbearance Agreement is hereby ratified and approved and 

the Debtors are hereby directed to comply with and perform the provisions of the Forbearance 

Agreement and the Credit Agreement. 

12 
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34. THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES that the payments made by the Debtors 

pursuant to the August 16 Order, this Order, the Credit Agreement, the Forbearance Agreement, 

the other Credit Documents or any of the Definitive Documents, and the granting of the Proposal 

DIP Charge and CCAA DIP Charge (each as defined below), do not and will not constitute 

preferences, fraudulent conveyances, transfers at undervalue, oppressive conduct, or other 

challengeable or voidable transactions under any applicable law. 

VALIDITY AND PRIORITY OF CHARGES CREATED IN THE PROPOSAL 

PROCEEDINGS 

35. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Directors' Charge (the "Proposal Directors' 

Charge"), Administration Charge (the "Proposal Administration Charge"), and DIP Charge 

(the "Proposal DIP Charge"), each granted in the August 16 Order pursuant to paragraphs 12-

16 and 20 inclusive, shall continue to be in force and effect in these proceedings pursuant to the 

CCAA with the priorities provided for in paragraph [43] hereof. 

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS' INDEMNIFICATION AND CHARGE 

36. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Debtors shall indemnify their directors and officers 

against obligations and liabilities that they may incur as directors or officers of the Debtors after 

the commencement of the within proceedings, except to the extent that, with respect to any 

officer or director, the obligation or liability was incurred as a result of the director's or officer's 

gross negligence or wilful misconduct. 

37. THIS COURT ORDERS that the directors and officers of the Debtors shall be entitled to 

the benefit of and are hereby granted a charge (the "CCAA Directors' Charge") on the 

Property, which charge, together with the Proposal Directors' Charge, shall not exceed an 

aggregate amount of $50,000, as security for the indemnity provided in paragraph [35I of this 

Order. The CCAA Directors' Charge shall have the priority set out in paragraph [43] herein. 

38. THIS COURT ORDERS that, notwithstanding any language in any applicable insurance 

policy to the contrary, (a) no insurer shall be entitled to be subrogated to or claim the benefit of 

the CCAA Directors' Charge, and (b) the Debtors' directors and officers shall only be entitled to 

the benefit of the CCAA Directors' Charge to the extent that they do not have coverage under 

13 
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any directors' and officers' insurance policy, or to the extent that such coverage is insufficient to 

pay amounts indemnified in accordance with paragraph [351 of this Order. 

DIP FINANCING 

39. THIS COURT ORDERS that, in addition to the existing liens, charges, mortgages and 

encumbrances in favour of the Lender, as security for all obligations of the Debtors to the Lender 

relating to advances made to the Debtors under the Credit Agreement and Forbearance 

Agreement from and after the date of this Order, including the Proposal DIP Charge, the Lender 

shall be entitled to the benefit of and is hereby granted a charge (the "CCAA DIP Charge") on 

the Property, which CCAA DIP Charge shall not secure an obligation that exists before this 

Order is made. The CCAA DIP Charge shall have the priority set out in paragraph [43.1 hereof 

40. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Debtors are hereby authorized and empowered to 

execute and deliver such credit agreements, mortgages, charges, hypothecs and security 

documents, guarantees and other definitive documents (collectively, the "CCAA Definitive 

Documents" and together with the term "Definitive Documents" as defined in the August 16 

Order, the "Definitive Documents"), as are contemplated by the Credit Agreement, Forbearance 

Agreement or as may be reasonably required by the Lender pursuant to the terms thereof, and the 

Debtors are hereby authorized and directed to pay and perform all of their indebtedness, interest, 

fees, liabilities and obligations to the Lender under and pursuant to the Credit Agreement, 

Forbearance Agreement and the CCAA Definitive Documents as and when the same become due 

and are to be performed, notwithstanding any other provision of this Order. 

41. THIS COURT ORDERS that, notwithstanding any other provision of this Order: 

(a) the Lender may take such steps from time to time as it may deem necessary or 

appropriate to file, register, record or perfect the CCAA DIP Charge or any of the 

Definitive Documents; 

(b) upon the earlier of the occurrence of a Termination Event or the last day of the 

Forbearance Period (in each case as defined in the Forbearance Agreement), the 

Lender may: 

(i) immediately cease making advances to the Debtors; 

14 
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(ii) set off and/or consolidate any amounts owing by the Lender to the Debtors 
against the obligations of the Debtors to the Lender under the Credit 
Agreement, the Forbearance Agreement, any other Credit Documents (as 
defined in the Credit Agreement) or the Definitive Documents; and 

(iii) apply to this Court for an order authorizing the Lender to exercise any and 
all of its rights and remedies against the Debtors or the Property under or 
pursuant to the Credit Agreement, the Forbearance Agreement, any other 
Credit Documents (as defined in the Credit Agreement) or the Definitive 
Documents, the Proposal DIP Charge, the CCAA DIP Charge, or the 
Personal Property Security Act (Ontario) (the "PPSA") or similar 
legislation in any other applicable jurisdiction, including without 
limitation, to apply to this Court for the appointment of a receiver, receiver 
and manager or interim receiver in respect of the Property, or for a 
bankruptcy order against the Debtors and for the appointment of a trustee 
in bankruptcy of the Debtors; and 

(c) the foregoing rights and remedies of the Lender shall be enforceable against any 

trustee in bankruptcy, interim receiver, receiver or receiver and manager of the 

Debtors or the Property. 

42. THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES that the Lender shall be treated as 

unaffected in any plan of arrangement or compromise filed by the Debtors under the CCAA. 

CCAA ADMINISTRATION CHARGE 

43. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Monitor, counsel to the Monitor and the Debtors' 

counsel shall be entitled to the benefit of and are hereby granted a charge (the "CCAA 

Administration Charge") on the Property, which charge, together with the Proposal 

Administration Charge, shall not exceed an aggregate amount of $250,000, as security for their 

professional fees and disbursements incurred at the standard rates and charges of the Monitor and 

such counsel, both before and after the making of this Order in respect of these proceedings. The 

CCAA Administration Charge shall have the priority set out in paragraph [43] hereof 

VALIDITY AND PRIORITY OF CHARGES CREATED BY THIS ORDER 

44. THIS COURT ORDERS that the priorities of the Proposal Directors' Charge, CCAA 

Directors' Charge, Proposal Administration Charge, CCAA Administration Charge, Proposal 

DIP Charge and CCAA DIP Charge, as among them, shall be as follows: 

15 
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First (pari passu) —the Proposal Administration Charge and the CCAA 

Administration Charge (to the maximum aggregate amount of $250,000); 

Second (pari passu) — the Proposal DIP Charge and the CCAA DIP Charge; 

Third — Security granted to the Lender under or pursuant to the Credit Agreement, 

the Forbearance Agreement and the Credit Documents; and 

Fourth (pari passu) —the Proposal Directors' Charge and CCAA Directors' 

Charge (to the maximum aggregate amount of $50,000). 

45. THIS COURT ORDERS that the filing, registration or perfection of the CCAA 

Directors' Charge, the CCAA Administration Charge and the CCAA DIP Charge (collectively, 

the "Charges") shall not be required, and that the Charges shall be valid and enforceable for all 

purposes, including as against any right, title or interest filed, registered, recorded or perfected 

subsequent to the Charges coming into existence, notwithstanding any such failure to file, 

register, record or perfect. 

46. THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the CCAA Directors' Charge, the CCAA 

Administration Charge and the CCAA DIP Charge (all as constituted and defined herein) shall 

constitute a charge on the Property and, subject to paragraph [43] of this Order, such Charges 

shall rank in priority to all other security interests, trusts, liens, charges and encumbrances, 

claims of secured creditors, statutory or otherwise (collectively, "Encumbrances") in favour of 

any Person, except for any security that qualifies as a purchase-money security interest pursuant 

to the PPSA. 

47. THIS COURT ORDERS that except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, or as 

may be approved by this Court, the Debtors shall not grant any Encumbrances over any Property 

that rank in priority to, or pari passu with, any of the CCAA Directors' Charge, the CCAA 

Administration Charge or the CCAA DIP Charge, unless the Debtors also obtain the prior 

written consent of the Monitor, the Lender and the beneficiaries of the CCAA Directors' Charge 

and the CCAA Administration Charge, or further Order of this Court. 

48. THIS COURT ORDERS that the CCAA Directors' Charge, the CCAA Administration 

Charge, the Credit Agreement, the Forbearance Agreement, the Definitive Documents and the 
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CCAA DIP Charge shall not be rendered invalid or unenforceable and the rights and remedies of 

the chargees entitled to the benefit of the Charges (collectively, the "Chargees") and/or the 

Lender thereunder shall not otherwise be limited or impaired in any way by (a) the pendency of 

these proceedings and the declarations of insolvency made herein; (b) any application(s) for 

bankruptcy order(s) issued pursuant to BIA, or any bankruptcy order made pursuant to such 

applications; (c) the filing of any assignments for the general benefit of creditors made pursuant 

to the BIA; (d) the provisions of any federal or provincial statutes; or (e) any negative covenants, 

prohibitions or other similar provisions with respect to borrowings, incurring debt or the creation 

of Encumbrances, contained in any existing loan documents, lease, sublease, offer to lease or 

other agreement (collectively, an "Agreement") which binds the Debtors, and notwithstanding 

any provision to the contrary in any Agreement: 

(a) neither the creation of the Charges nor the execution, delivery, perfection, registration 

or performance of the Forbearance Agreement, Credit Agreement, Credit Documents 

or any of the Definitive Documents shall create or be deemed to constitute a breach 

by the Debtors of any Agreement to which it is a party; 

(b) none of the Chargees shall have any liability to any Person whatsoever as a result of 

any breach of any Agreement caused by or resulting from the creation of the Charges, 

or the execution, delivery or performance of the Forbearance Agreement, Credit 

Agreement, Credit Documents or any of the Definitive Documents; and 

(c) the payments made by the Debtors pursuant to this Order, the Forbearance 

Agreement, Credit Agreement, Credit Documents or any of the Definitive 

Documents, and the granting of the Charges, do not and will not constitute 

preferences, fraudulent conveyances, transfers at undervalue, oppressive conduct, or 

other challengeable or voidable transactions under any applicable law. 

49. THIS COURT ORDERS that any Charge created by this Order over leases of real 

property in Canada shall only be a Charge in the Debtors' interest in such real property leases. 

17 
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SERVICE AND NOTICE 

50. THIS COURT ORDERS AND DECLARES that, given the noticing procedures 

established and completed in the Proposal Proceedings, the Monitor shall not be required to (i) 

publish any notices, (ii) send any notices to known creditors, or (C) prepare and publish a list 

showing the names and addresses of those creditors and the estimated amounts of those claims. 

The Monitor shall upload all documents filed in connection with this Application on the Case 

Website listed in paragraph [501 hereof. 

51. THIS COURT ORDERS that the E-Service Protocol of the Commercial List (the 

"Protocol") is approved and adopted by reference herein and, in this proceeding, the service of 

documents made in accordance with the Protocol (which can be found on the Commercial List 

web site at http://www.ontariocourts.ca/scj/practice/practice-directionstioronto/e-service- 

protocol/) shall be valid and effective service. Subject to Rule 17.05 this Order shall constitute 

an order for substituted service pursuant to Rule 16.04 of the Rules of Civil Procedure. Subject to 

Rule 3.01(d) of the Rules of Civil Procedure and paragraph 21 of the Protocol, service of 

documents in accordance with the Protocol will be effective on transmission. This Court further 

orders that the Case Website (the "Case Website") established in the Proposal Proceedings shall 

be used in these proceedings under the CCAA in accordance with the Protocol, which is 

accessible at the following URL `<http://cfcanada.fticinsulting.com/Dundee/>'. 

52. THIS COURT ORDERS that if the service or distribution of documents in accordance 

with the Protocol is not practicable, the Debtors and the Monitor are at liberty to serve or 

distribute this Order, any other materials and orders in these proceedings, any notices or other 

correspondence, by forwarding true copies thereof by prepaid ordinary mail, courier, personal 

delivery or facsimile transmission to the Debtors' creditors or other interested parties at their 

respective addresses as last shown on the records of the Debtors and that any such service or 

distribution by courier, personal delivery or facsimile transmission shall be deemed to be 

received on the next business day following the date of forwarding thereof, or if sent by ordinary 

mail, on the third business day after mailing. 
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GENERAL 

53. THIS COURT ORDERS that the Debtors or the Monitor may from time to time apply to 

this Court for advice and directions in the discharge of its powers and duties hereunder. 

54. THIS COURT ORDERS that nothing in this Order shall prevent the Monitor from acting 

as an interim receiver, a receiver, a receiver and manager, or a trustee in bankruptcy of the 

Debtors, the Business or the Property. 

55. THIS COURT HEREBY REQUESTS the aid and recognition of any court, tribunal, 

regulatory or administrative body having jurisdiction in Canada or in the United States, to give 

effect to this Order and to assist the Debtors, the Monitor and their respective agents in carrying 

out the terms of this Order. All courts, tribunals, regulatory and administrative bodies are hereby 

respectfully requested to make such orders and to provide such assistance to the Debtors and to 

the Monitor, as an officer of this Court, as may be necessary or desirable to give effect to this 

Order, to grant representative status to the Monitor in any foreign proceeding, or to assist the 

Debtors and the Monitor and their respective agents in carrying out the terms of this Order. 

56. THIS COURT ORDERS that each of the Debtors and the Monitor be at liberty and is 

hereby authorized and empowered to apply to any court, tribunal, regulatory or administrative 

body, wherever located, for the recognition of this Order and for assistance in carrying out the 

terms of this Order, and that the Monitor is authorized and empowered to act as a representative 

in respect of the within proceedings for the purpose of having these proceedings recognized in a 

jurisdiction outside Canada. 

57. THIS COURT ORDERS that any interested party (including the Debtors, the Lender and 

the Monitor) may apply to this Court to vary or amend this Order on not less than seven (7) days' 

notice to any other party or parties likely to be affected by the order sought or upon such other 

notice, if any, as this Court may order. 

58. THIS COURT ORDERS that this Order and all of its provisions are effective as of 

12:01 a.m. Eastern Standard/Daylight Time on the date of this Order. 
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1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 On August 15, 2017 (the "Filing Date"), each of Dundee Energy Limited Partnership 

("DELP") and Dundee Oil and Gas Limited ("DOGL") (together, "Dundee" or the "Debtors") 

filed a Notice of Intention to Make a Proposal (the "NOIs") pursuant to s. 50.4(1) of the 

Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada), R.S.C. 1985, c. B-3, as amended (the "BIA"). 

1.2 FTI Consulting Canada Inc. ("FTI") (the "Proposal Trustee") has consented to act as 

trustee under the NOIs. FTI is also the proposed monitor (the "Monitor") in the CCAA 

Proceedings (as hereafter defined). 

1.3 By order dated August 16, 2017 (the "Sale Process Order"), a copy of which is attached 

as Appendix "A", the Ontario Superior Court of Justice (In Bankruptcy and Insolvency) 

(Commercial List) (the "Court"): 

a) declared that the proposal proceedings for DELP and DOGL (together, the 

"Proposal Proceedings") were administratively consolidated and continued 

under a joint title of proceedings; 

b) directed that all materials in the Proposal Proceedings shall be filed with the 

Commercial List Office only in the DELP estate and court file and dispensed with 

any further filing thereof in the DOGL estate and court file; 

c) approved a sale solicitation process (the "BIA SSP") for all of the assets, 

undertakings and properties of Dundee (collectively, the "Property") under the 

supervision of the Proposal Trustee; 
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d) approved the amended and restated forbearance agreement made as of August 15, 

2017 (as amended, the "Forbearance Agreement") between Dundee, Dundee 

Energy Limited ("DEL") and National Bank, as lender and agent for the lenders 

to Dundee (in such capacity, the "Lender"); 

e) authorized DELP to continue to obtain and borrow, repay and re-borrow 

additional monies under the credit facility (the "Credit Facility") made available 

to DELP by the Lender pursuant to the amended and restated credit agreement 

among DELP, as borrower, DEL and DOGL, as guarantors, and the Lender, dated 

as of July 31, 2012 (as amended, the "Credit Agreement") subject to the terms of 

the Forbearance Agreement, in order to finance DELP's working capital 

requirements, provided that borrowings by DELP under the Credit Facility shall 

not exceed the amounts contemplated in the Credit Agreement and the 

Forbearance Agreement; 

f) extended the time within which a proposal must be filed by Dundee under the 

BIA, as well as the corresponding stay of proceedings under s. 69 of the BIA, 

until October 30, 2017 (the "Stay Period"); 

g) granted a charge (the "DIP Charge") on the Property in favour of the Lender as 

security for all obligations of Dundee to the Lender relating to advances made to 

DELP under the Credit Facility from and after the date of the Sale Process Order; 

h) granted the Administration Charge and the Directors' Charge (each as defined in 

the Sale Process Order) on the Property in the amounts of $250,000 and $50,000 

respectively; 

2 
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i) declared that each of the Administration Charge and the DIP Charge shall rank in 

priority to all other Encumbrances (as defined in the Sale Process Order) on the 

Property in favour of any person, with the exception of certain secured lenders; 

and 

j) declared that the Directors' Charge shall rank in priority to all other 

Encumbrances on the Property in favour of any person, with the exception of the 

Administration Charge, the DIP Charge, the security granted to the Lender 

pursuant to the Credit Agreement and certain other secured lenders. 

1.2 The Stay Period was most recently extended to February 15, 2018 by order of the Court 

dated January 25, 2017. Pursuant to the BIA, the Court is not permitted to authorize any 

further extensions of the Stay Period in the Proposal Proceedings. As further discussed 

below, the Debtors are seeking authorization to continue the Proposal Proceedings under 

the Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act, R.S.C. 1985, c.C.-36 (as amended, 

"CCAA"). 

2.0 PURPOSE OF THE FOURTH REPORT 

2.1 The purpose of this fourth report of the Proposal Trustee (the "Fourth Report") is to 

provide the Court with the following: 

a) an update on Dundee's operations since the third report of the Proposal Trustee 

dated January 22, 2018 (the "Third Report"); 

b) an update on the Proposal Trustee's activities since the Third Report; 
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c) an update on the second phase ("Phase 2") of the BIA SSP; 

d) the receipts and disbursements of Dundee for the period ended January 26, 2018; 

e) the Proposal Trustee's review of Dundee's updated cash flow forecast for the 

period ending May 18, 2018 (the "Cash Flow Forecast"), a copy of which is 

attached as Appendix "B"; 

f) the basis for the continuation of the Proposal Proceedings under the CCAA (the 

"CCAA Proceedings"); 

g) the basis for granting certain relief under the CCAA, including: 

i. appointing FTI as the Monitor of the Debtors; 

ii. granting the CCAA Administration Charge, CCAA Directors' Charge and 

CCAA DIP Charge (each term as defined below); 

iii. extending the Stay Period until March 13, 2018; and 

h) the Proposal Trustee's conclusions and recommendations in connection with the 

foregoing. 
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3.0 TERMS OF REFERENCE 

3.1 In preparing the Fourth Report, the Proposal Trustee has relied upon unaudited financial 

information of Dundee's books and records, certain financial information prepared by Dundee 

and discussions with Dundee's current management ("Management"). 

3.2 Except as described in the Fourth Report: 

a) The Proposal Trustee has not audited, reviewed or otherwise attempted to verify 

the accuracy or completeness of the information provided to it by Management in 

a mariner that would comply with Generally Accepted Assurance Standards 

pursuant to the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada Handbook; and 

b) The Proposal Trustee has not examined or reviewed fmancial forecasts and 

projections referred to in the Fourth Report in a manner that would comply with 

the procedures described in the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada 

Handbook. 

3.3 Future oriented financial information reported or relied on in preparing the Fourth Report 

is based on Management's assumptions regarding future events; actual results may vary from 

forecast and such variations may be material. 
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3.4 The Proposal Trustee has assumed the integrity and truthfulness of the information and 

explanations presented to it by Management. The Proposal Trustee has not independently 

audited, reviewed, or otherwise attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness of such 

information. Accordingly, the Proposal Trustee expresses no opinion or other form of assurance 

with respect to the information contained in the Fourth Report. The Proposal Trustee assumes no 

responsibility or liability for any loss or damage incurred by or caused to any person or entity as 

a result of the circulation, publication, re-production or use of or reliance upon this Fourth 

Report or for any use which any person or entity makes of the Fourth Report, or any reliance on 

or a decision made based upon the Fourth Report, other than for the express purposes as set out 

in this Fourth Report. 

3.5 Unless otherwise stated, all monetary amounts contained herein are expressed in 

Canadian Dollars. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein have the meanings defined in 

the Sale Process Order (including the BIA SSP attached thereto). 

3.6 A copy of the Fourth Report and all other Court materials, orders and endorsements 

issued in these proceedings are, and will be, available on the Proposal Trustee's website at: 

http://cfcanada.fticonsulting.com/Dundee/  (the "Proposal Trustee's Website"). 

4.0 BACKGROUND AND UPDATE ON DUNDEE'S OPERATIONS 

4.1 DELP is a limited partnership created pursuant to the Limited Partnerships Act (Ontario). 

DELP operates drilling and wellsite services in Ontario. It holds on-shore and off-shore oil and 

natural gas producing assets, such as wells, drill and service barges, supply boats and a rotary 

drilling rig. 
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4.2 DOGL is a company incorporated in Ontario and is the general partner of DELP. 

DOGL's only asset is its interest in DELP. 

4.3 DELP's primary lender and secured creditor is the Lender. Pursuant to the Sale Process 

Order, the Lender is unaffected by the stay proceedings in the Proposal Proceedings except for 

requiring leave to enforce its security. 

4.4 Since the date of the Third Report, the Proposal Trustee has continued to work closely 

with Management and monitored Dundee's business operations. The Debtors and Management 

have assisted the Proposal Trustee with the BIA SSP, where necessary, and preparation of the 

Cash Flow Forecast. Additionally, the Debtors have continued to report to the Lender as required 

pursuant to the Credit Agreement and the Forbearance Agreement. 

4.5 In order to accommodate the additional time required to complete Phase 2 of the BIA 

SSP, the Debtors and the Lender are in the process of entering into a Second Amended and 

Restated Forbearance Agreement, which will, among other things, extend certain milestones that 

the Debtors must meet in the BIA SSP and Forbearance Agreement. 

4.6 Management has advised the Proposal Trustee that Dundee has continued with its 

environmental programs in the ordinary course since the Filing Date. 

5.0 PROPOSAL TRUSTEE'S ACTIVITIES TO DATE 

5.1 In addition to the other activities and conduct of the Proposal Trustee described in the 

Fourth Report, since the date of the Third Report, the Proposal Trustee has: 

a) continued to maintain the Proposal Trustee's Website; 
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b) continued to correspond and meet with Management and legal counsel; 

c) continued to assist Dundee in communicating with suppliers to maintain going 

concern operations of Dundee; 

d) continued to assist Dundee in communicating with royalty and lease holders; 

e) continued to respond to inquiries from stakeholders, including addressing 

questions or concerns of parties who contacted the Proposal Trustee on the toll-

free number or general email account established by the Proposal Trustee; 

f) continued to assist Dundee in implementing an appropriate accounting cut-off to 

ensure proper determination of pre and post-filing obligations and liabilities; 

g) continued to monitor Dundee's business and financial affairs in order to assess 

same; 

h) continued to monitor weekly proposed disbursements with respect to payment 

terms with suppliers and creditors of Dundee in accordance with the Proposal 

Proceedings; 

i) continued to implement and supervise the BIA SSP in accordance with its terms, 

described in more detail below; 

j) continued to negotiate with Qualified Bidders in accordance with the BIA SSP; 

k) provided updates to the Lender regarding the BIA SSP and conferred with respect 

to the Proposal Proceedings; 
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1) engaged in discussions with each of Dundee, the Lender and the Qualified 

Bidders with respect to continuation of the Proposal Proceedings under the 

CCAA; 

m) engaged in discussions with the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry 

("MNRF") with respect to the BIA SSP and Qualified Bidders; 

n) provided assistance to Dundee in the preparation of the Cash Flow Forecast and 

reported to the Lender as required under the Forbearance Agreement; 

o) prepared the Fourth Report in consultation with the Proposal Trustee's legal 

counsel; and 

p) reviewed the Second Amended and Restated Forbearance Agreement to be 

entered into among the Debtors and the Lender, which amends and restates the 

Forbearance Agreement. 

6.0 BIA SSP UPDATE 

6.1 As set out in the BIA SSP, final binding proposals to purchase some or all of the Property 

(each, a "Final Bid") were required to be delivered to the Proposal Trustee by the Phase 

2 Bid Deadline of November 24, 2017, which was extended to December 1, 2017 with 

the consent of the Lender. The Proposal Trustee received multiple Final Bids by the 

Phase 2 Bid Deadline. 
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6.2 The Proposal Trustee anticipates that it will shortly settle the terms of the Form of 

Purchase Agreement with one of the remaining Qualified Bidders, although it is unlikely 

that such transaction will close prior to February 15, 2018. Although good faith efforts 

have been made by the Debtors and the Proposal Trustee to close a transaction prior to 

February 15, it is necessary to continue the Proposal Proceedings under the CCAA in 

order to complete and implement a transaction pursuant to the BIA SSP. 

6.3 In accordance with the BIA SSP, the Proposal Trustee has entered into discussions with 

the Lender to seek and obtain the required consent from the Lender to extend the 

applicable milestone dates under the BIA SSP as part of the continuation of the Proposal 

Proceedings under the CCAA. 

7.0 CASH FLOW RESULTS RELATIVE TO FORECAST 

Cash Flow Results and Variances 

7.1 Cash receipts and disbursements, since the Third Report, for the two-week period ended 

January 26, 2018 (the "Reporting Period") as compared to the cash flow forecast filed in the 

Third Report (the "January Cash Flow Forecast") are presented in the table below: 
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Dundee Energy Limited Partnership and Dundee Oil & Gas Limited 
Schedule of Actual Receipts and Disbursements Compared to the January Cash Flow Forecast(1)  

For the Two-Week Period Ended January 26, 2018 
($000's CAD) 

Actual Forecast Variance 

Oil 907 801 106 
Gas 1,431 1,408 23 
Other 11 (11) 

Total Collections 2,338 2,220 118 

Operating Expenses 
Production Expenditures (273) (336) 63 
Landowner Disbursements (32) (32) 
Abandonment Costs (6) (6) 

Total Operating Expenses Disbursements (311) (336) 25 

Payroll/Other Expenses 
Payroll (173) (173) 
G&A (157) (60) (97) 
Interest & Financing Fees 
Realized Risk Mgmt. Gain / (Loss) 
Restructuring Expenses (195) (195) 

Total Payroll/Other Expenses Disbursements (525) (60) (465) 

Net Cash Flow 1,502 1,824 (322) 

Opening Credit Facility Balance(2)  (54,777) (54,777) 
Change in Credit Facility Balance 1,502 1,824 

Closing Credit Facility Balance (53,275) (52,953) 
Bank Line Limit (58,000) (58,000) 

Bank Line Availability  4,725 5,047 (322) 

Note 1 
Readers are cautioned to read the Terms of Reference as set out in paragragh 3 in the Fourth Report. 

Note 2 
Opening Credit Facility Balance includes $57.4M credit facility balance net of cash on deposit of $2.7M and outstanding 
cheques in the amount of $0.1M. 

0038 

7.2 During the Reporting Period, Dundee's total cash receipts in the amount of $2.3M were 

approximately $0.1M higher than forecast, which was relatively consistent with the January Cash 

Flow Forecast. 

7.3 Dundee's total disbursements in the amount of $0.8M during the Reporting Period were 

approximately $0.4M higher than projected in the January Cash Flow Forecast. Management 
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attributes the variance to timing differences related to disbursements for payroll and restructuring 

expenses. 

7.4 Overall, during the Reporting Period, Dundee experienced a negative cash flow variance 

of approximately $0.3M relative to the January Cash Flow Forecast. However, since the Filing 

Date, the Debtors have experienced a positive cash flow variance. 

Credit Facility 

7.5 As at January 26, 2018 the amount outstanding under the Credit Facility net of cash on 

deposit (the "Credit Facility Balance") was $53.3M, which is approximately $0.3M higher than 

forecast due to the variances noted above. Since the date of the Sale Process Order, the Lender 

has advanced approximately $1.4M to DELP and DELP has repaid $1.3M to the Lender under 

the Credit Facility. Since the Third Report, Dundee has continued to generate positive cash flow 

from its operations enabling it to continue to meet its obligations under the Credit Facility and 

the Forbearance Agreement. 

8.0 CASH FLOW FORECAST UPDATE 

8.1 As noted above, the Debtors have prepared the Cash Flow Forecast for the period ending 

May 18, 2018 (the "Cash Flow Period"). The Cash Flow Forecast is attached as Appendix "B". 

8.2 The Cash Flow Forecast is presented on a weekly basis during the Cash Flow Period and 

represents Management's estimate of the projected cash flow during the Cash Flow Period. The 

Cash Flow Forecast has been prepared using the probable and hypothetical assumptions set out 

in the notes to the Cash Flow Forecast (the "Cash Flow Assumptions"). 
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8.3 The Proposal Trustee has reviewed the Cash Flow Forecast to the standard required of a 

Court-appointed Proposal Trustee by s. 50.4(2)(a) of the BIA, which requires the Proposal 

Trustee to review the debtor's cash flow statement as to its reasonableness and report on the 

reasonableness of the cash flow statement to the Court. Pursuant to this standard, the Proposal 

Trustee's review of the Cash Flow Forecast consisted of inquiries, analytical procedures and 

discussions related to information supplied to it by certain key members of Management and 

employees of Dundee. The Proposal Trustee reviewed information provided by Management for 

the Cash Flow Assumptions. 

8.4 The Cash Flow Forecast indicates that Dundee will have sufficient liquidity to operate the 

business as a going concern during the Stay Period and the Cash Flow Period. 

8.5 The Cash Flow Forecast projects that the Credit Facility Balance as at May 18, 2018 will 

be $56.0M, which is an increase of $1.7M from the opening Credit Facility Balance as at 

February 16, 2018 of $54.3M. The increase in the Credit Facility Balance during the Cash Flow 

Period is mainly due to the Debtors' seasonal operations, as cash disbursements increase when 

weather conditions are favorable as the Debtors conduct abandonment/well maintenance 

activities on Lake Erie. The Debtors are forecast to begin issuing cash disbursements for these 

activities beginning in March 2018. 

8.6 The Cash Flow Forecast projects collections during the Cash Flow Period of $6.5M 

primarily related to oil and natural gas sales with the largest disbursements during the Cash Flow 

Period related to operational expenses of $2.1M and $1.3M of payroll. As mentioned in the Third 

Report, the restructuring expenses are subject to further review and approval by the Lender. The 

Lender and the Proposal Trustee are engaged in continued discussions regarding the projected 
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disbursements for certain professional fees, which could result in the reduction of the overall 

amount of restructuring expenses payable during the Cash Flow Period. 

8.7 The Cash Flow Forecast has been prepared solely for the purpose described above and 

readers are cautioned that it may not be appropriate for other purposes. 

8.8 As required by s. 10(2) of the CCAA, DELP's financial statements as at December 31, 

2017 and DOGL's financial statements as at December 31, 2016 are attached hereto at 

Appendix "C" and Appendix "D", respectively. 

9.0 CONTINUATION OF TILE PROPOSAL PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE CCAA 

9.1 Pursuant to section 50.4(9) of the BIA, the Court may grant an extension to file a 

proposal for a maximum of six months from the commencement of the Proposal Proceedings. 

Given that the Proposal Proceedings were commenced on August 15, 2017, the Stay Period is 

deemed to expire on February 15, 2018. Since the BIA SSP is unlikely to be completed prior to 

such date, the Debtors will likely be unable to file a proposal on or before such date. 

9.2 Therefore, in consultation with the Proposal Trustee and with the consent of the Lender, 

the Debtors are seeking to continue the Proposal Proceedings under the CCAA pursuant to the 

draft Initial Order, which will be filed by Dundee in its application materials (the "Initial 

Order"). Granting the Initial Order will provide additional time for the Proposal Trustee or 

Monitor to conclude the BIA SSP and for the Debtors to enter into and ultimately close a binding 

asset purchase agreement with respect to the Successful Bid(s). 

9.3 The Proposal Trustee has discussed the continuation of the Proposal Proceedings under 

the CCAA with the remaining Qualified Bidder(s) and the MNFR. 
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9.4 Continuation of the Proposal Proceedings under the CCAA is governed by section 

11.6(a) of the CCAA, which provides: 

Notwithstanding the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, 

(a) proceedings commenced under Part III of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency 
Act may be taken up and continued under this Act only if a proposal within the 
meaning of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act has not been filed under that 
Part. 

9.5 Dundee satisfies the statutory test set out in the CCAA as it has not filed a proposal under 

the Proposal Proceedings. 

9.6 Further, DOGL is an "insolvent" corporation to which the CCAA applies. The proposed 

Initial Order requests that the benefits of the protection and authorizations granted in the Initial 

Order shall be enjoyed by DELP, as DOGL is DELP's general partner. As stated above, as at 

January 26, 2018, the Credit Facility Balance was $53.3M. This exceeds the cash on hand 

available to the Debtors, as demonstrated in the Cash Flow Forecast. 

9.7 The proposed continuation of the Proposal Proceedings under the CCAA is consistent 

with the purposes of the CCAA. In the Proposal Proceedings, the Debtors have implemented a 

sale process for the sale of substantially all of their assets. Such a transaction is intended to 

maximize the Debtors' estate for the benefit of their stakeholders. The Lender is supportive of 

the continuation proceedings and the conclusion of the BIA SSP. 

9.8 It is beneficial to the Debtors' stakeholders to avoid the social and economic losses that 

would result from a liquidation and bankruptcy proceedings. For instance, through a going 

concern sale, the Debtors are able to transfer a significant portion, if not all, of their well assets, 

which will avoid significant abandonment and reclamation obligations that could otherwise 
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result in bankruptcy proceedings. In addition, it is anticipated that certain of the Debtors' 

employees will maintain their jobs, the Debtors' suppliers will maintain their customers and the 

Debtors' customers will maintain their suppliers. 

9.9 Further, the Debtors have met the requirements set out for an initial application under 

section 10(2) of the CCAA as this Fourth Report includes the Cash Flow Forecast, 

accompanying report, and financial statements. As discussed above, the Debtors' have sufficient 

liquidity to continue with the CCAA Proceedings. 

9.10 FTI has consented to act as Monitor in the CCAA proceedings. FTI has been acting as the 

Proposal Trustee since the commencement of the Proposal Proceedings. As described above, FTI 

has become intimately familiar with the Debtors' operations and has worked closely with 

management. It is appropriate for FTI to be appointed as Monitor in the present proceedings to 

continue assisting Dundee in its restructuring efforts. 

9.11 The proposed Initial Order requests that the Monitor be exempted from complying with 

the noticing and publication requirements under s. 23(1)(a) of the CCAA. Known creditors have 

already received notice of Dundee's restructuring proceedings pursuant to the Proposal 

Proceedings and have been provided with information on how to access documents filed in 

connection with the Proposal Proceedings on the Proposal Trustee's website. Accordingly, in the 

Proposal Trustee's view, it is not necessary to incur the additional expense of delivering 

duplicative notices to these creditors 

Municipal Taxes 

9.12 As mentioned in the affidavit of Lucie Presot sworn August 14, 2017, at the date of the 
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Sale Process Order, approximately $2M was owing by Dundee to various municipalities with 

respect to real property and pipeline taxes. Dundee had not paid these arrears as this amount was 

in dispute. 

9.13 Dundee has advised the Proposal Trustee that the nature of the dispute is with respect to 

both the quantum of the taxes assessed and the eligibility of the assessments. Although Dundee 

has not yet launched a formal appeal itself, it was closely following an appeal launched by 

another Ontario oil and gas company, Tribute Resources Inc. Dundee expected that the outcome 

of such appeal would have a direct effect on the taxes payable by Dundee and, accordingly, 

suspended payments to the municipalities while the appeal was ongoing. 

9.14 On January 22, 2018, the Ontario Superior Court of Justice (Divisional Court) released its 

decision dismissing the appeal by Tribute Resources Inc. Dundee is considering the impact of 

this decision on its position and has not ruled out bringing its own appeal. 

9.15 The amounts owing by Dundee to various municipalities as at the date of this Fourth 

Report with respect to real property and pipeline taxes total approximately $2.5M (the 

"Municipal Tax Arrears"), with $0.5M of this amount referable to the period after the Filing 

Date. 

9.16 The proposed Initial Order requires Dundee to pay its municipal taxes referable to the 

period after the date of the proposed Initial Order. Dundee intends to stay current on its 

municipal taxes, to the extent they are attributable to the period after the commencement of the 

CCAA Proceedings. 

9.17 However, as noted in the Cash Flow Forecast, Dundee projects that it will not have 
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sufficient liquidity during the Cash Flow Period to pay the Municipal Tax Arrears unless and 

until a sale transaction(s) closes. As noted above, Dundee is entering a period of increased cash 

disbursements as weather conditions improve and the Debtors conduct abandonment/well 

maintenance activities. Management intends to conserve Dundee's cash to ensure these activities 

are conducted without interruption and preserve the going concern value of its business in order 

to facilitate and close a sale transaction(s). 

CCAA Charges 

Administration Charge 

9.18 The proposed Initial Order requests that the Court give full force and effect to the 

Administration Charge (referred to hereafter as the "Proposal Administration Charge") and 

grant a similar administration charge in the CCAA Proceedings pursuant to s. 11.52 of the 

CCAA (the "CCAA Administration Charge"). The CCAA Administration Charge and the 

Proposal Administration Charge shall not exceed an aggregate amount of $250,000 as security 

for the professional fees and disbursements of Dundee, the Monitor and their respective counsel. 

Directors' Charge 

9.19 Similarly, the proposed Initial Order requests that the Court give full force and effect to 

the Directors' Charge (referred to hereafter as the "Proposal Directors' Charge") and grant a 

similar charge in the CCAA Proceedings pursuant to s. 11.51 of the CCAA (the "CCAA 

Directors' Charge"). The CCAA Directors' Charge indemnifies the Debtors' directors and 

officers against obligations and liabilities that they may incur as directors or officers of the 

Applicants after the commencement of the within proceedings, except to the extent that the 
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obligation or liability was incurred as a result of the director's or officer's gross negligence or 

wilful misconduct. The CCAA Directors' Charge and the Proposal Directors' Charge shall not 

exceed an aggregate amount of $50,000. 

DIP Charge 

9.20 Further, proposed Initial Order requests that the Court give full force and effect to the 

DIP Charge (referred to hereafter as the "Proposal DIP Charge") and grant a similar charge in 

favour of the Lender as security for all obligations of Dundee to the Lender relating to advances 

made to DELP under the Credit Facility from and after the date of the Initial Order pursuant to s. 

11.2 of the CCAA (the "CCAA DIP Charge"). 

9.21 Dundee requires additional advances under the Credit Facility in order to fund the CCAA 

Proceedings and provide liquidity through the completion of the BIA SSP, which is in the best 

interest of the Debtors' stakeholders in an effort to maximize the estate. Given that the Sale 

Process Order has previously authorized and granted the Proposal DIP Charge, no creditors will 

be materially prejudiced by the CCAA DIP Charge as it is essentially a continuation of the 

Proposal DIP Charge. 

Priority of Charges 

9.22 It is proposed that the above noted charges shall rank as follows: 

First (part passu) —the Proposal Administration Charge and the CCAA Administration 

Charge (to the aggregate maximum amount of $250,000); 

Second (pxtri passu) — the Proposal DIP Charge and the CCAA DIP Charge; 
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Third — Security granted to the Lender under or pursuant to the Credit Agreement (and as 

described in the Forbearance Agreement (as amended)); and 

Fourth (pari passu) —the Proposal Directors' Charge and CCAA Directors' Charge (to the 

aggregate maximum amount of $50,000). 

9.23 The amounts and priorities set out above are identical to those set out in the Sale Process 

Order and, accordingly, granting these charges in the Initial Order would not prejudice the 

Debtors' creditors. 

10.0 EXTENSION OF THE STAY PERIOD 

10.1 Pursuant to the Sale Process Order, the Stay Period will expire on February 15, 2018. The 

Debtors are seeking an extension of the Stay Period to March 13, 2018. 

10.2 The Proposal Trustee supports the continuation of the Proposal Proceedings under the 

CCAA and extending the Stay Period March 13, 2018 for the following reasons: 

a) the Proposal Trustee has been actively engaged in discussions with the Qualified 

Bidders pursuant to the BIA SSP, and anticipates that the Debtors will shortly enter into 

one or more binding agreements to purchase substantially all of the Property; 

b) extending the Stay Period is required to enable Dundee to continue to operate in 

the ordinary course and complete the BIA SSP, enter into a binding asset purchase 

agreement with respect to the Successful Bid(s), seek Court approval to complete the 

transaction(s) contemplated therein and to close such transaction(s); 

c) it is forecasted that Dundee has sufficient liquidity to continue operating in the 

ordinary course of business during the requested Stay Period; 
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d) no creditor would be materially prejudiced by the extension of the Stay Period; 

and 

e) the Debtors have acted in good faith and with due diligence in these Proposal 

Proceedings since the Filing Date. 

11.0 PROPOSAL TRUSTEE'S CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

11.1 For the reasons set out in the Fourth Report, the Proposal Trustee is of the view that 

continuation of the Proposal Proceedings under the CCAA in accordance with the draft Initial 

Order is reasonable and respectfully recommends that the Court grant the relief sought by 

Dundee. 
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Per: Jeffrey Rosenlitlg 
Senior Managing Director 
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All of which is respectfully submitted this 7th day of February 2018. 

FTI Consulting Canada Theo, solely in its capacity aS 
Proposal Trustee of Dundee Energy Limited Partnership 
and Dundee. Oil and Gas Limited and not in its personal 
or corporate capacity 
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as Schedule i"A"  lsttbjeat:tt such nqn riltfieilal atriertdirk00,040:1)14 be 4grood to 1* Natl on 
Bank,:and;:the Proposal Trustc4U--and is .hereby .approved. and t ae Proposal Trosteols:Imr.oky 
abtlivized direeted to take such steps as 'deem's ttetoggaty titt ttailfsithit emit* bathe 
MA, SSP, stihject to priOr,  topt-cw-41 orti;$ o0f:  being 6bletiod '1)0fegtk 40.0)0140.00 
tratsaction(s) unclertheZIA-SgP, 

31,11f$ ;CQIIRT .0.1.0MRS lhAt. 0011, .0 NO :l?Wfi$sl T uStee 404 afiY As i iit !.(aa 
b619Slitthil nett  by the .Proposal ti.Uiikes...thlith1151011Wpersonalzor ootporatiz 

jos-oi ci4ft)1000.go$,O.,11Vgihki#101*400" ON :1V.OS:(0000# in 

64.toSult.iorrifarniifig;*,,auttes,andmiliel)1A 

iftiiitgtokliroogittito (ii$0.19-sitoropiy,-10-4.41,14titothittioh: Of tfridtitirmittitioni tegatt.iirigbutidbk 
theTroperty 9r the„Business.:(as smOk.briumarcickfute4'hergiattelow)).,;o0pitIO the eaten ,stub 
losg4; itailiages:otliabilities resOititittrt.thd gi-ts s hoiffgettee.br Wittiiithisd.ottdutt °Title 
1",OPOSarrrki00 4t $pOlAsdArVitgii07..dotooiliod.htito Cogr,t, 

6., THIS t Otild -01IDtitk that., pursuant: to, Ituis,0 ..6.tttie;. Canada. :Porst2of 

frifoii.#00 Doef000tio ,41,04 .Pfoonaat. Trustee .is 6he el 

antborize4 4ndvon iitpd;tc, ,410.195w,p4 transferkgAeh pot904414:040..(tb*"..44100,74tt.t0 
their ddVissorsiskregtidsted peratiiittl ihibrinatioit of identifiable nz iv duals 

ii:toilow.g,.olhoutogliog,g111.01*.t.00tces.0-00 poolj.ijiloyotio*pg040§.gitoo§t4 
pertninkg"to•DUndees4Inst and-ourren('employaosi,,blionly foiho',.oxionf.  Aesirobl or-.:Iccaltrcd 

littoppiiv.totipt* ft•§410-4.thd Property and/or the Btlsirress (as heithiaft6r,  

defined)` MOO, 0444.EIbidor to wttotn glckppponfg inftnatton_i0t4.01:000.0 001 ::10.11440.4. - 
aria prcittet privtior iii~ such. Ahibianaittitv and litnif,A-e: use of :ma Irrrormatitor 

00.11,30.0.0..•0:X110 a01004:: 0 it does of shall tettirit all Walt fhritniatitity 

001100,.. 'Ow oltmativp: 00479,y such infoynvtict* 1:110: **ON :Aidd0.(s).  

the prlite.g ditt6h information andi upon .closing of the ..tramdiolv 

!P:000,50.14tai ih:s:the #t:*000ToyAtizo;44111worititjt4 tq.'4140-41fo:persaitil.itifeehatidipmfittii 

toittbatiaTotaiod tp thAcTizop.q.trAndiod3nainesp acqpirgctptIrst;4011,0 0,0 $tito.,30 n.itnatinOt 

is, in411;inat6rial rtapootg idtintical to-,:the,..priot.ostAif such itifOttilatt011: by Dundee, arid. 
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shall return: allother :•vers.outil friforMalion Ouridee ot alt *Alen ,petsonal 

fiOSSUSIONts.rtiti)0.-  1YAND.0:011altoNS:.  

17. THIS toHRT, ihat,.....tiutticcshall. remain in pOsseggioll, and,'.cooftrot 

00000t. OtAr.1114*000-i 00.104100i§ 40.0$.:1#40.0-04 of 0:_0iY4)140te02.1d 
wherever aitnitelinetudina:altpropeects :thereof-011e fTropyty17.anil shall eontihne to!....earty on 
business Witktfitpt.6pet:V.titioit:of its business tie labginesel); tUtiltict 

litfloPs t(  the Iterms:,:gnhelorbearartee Agr.c.§Ino*notA ate :C4stRlow.-Statqme0(s.,(0* 
dbitad 'Thee ittlpbstit trittde,•thalLtititi tialtift8 ftt:obligationvuti&erihis, order, be 

414040 i.14iptotijo 0041#11.4f:tlt Picitig# tit Doti)es*, ..any 
'pattered, 

8 THIS: COVAT 913;D_UP thtigithing eOht4i-J-*(1 in :04 9.Wer shall reqpitethc- fopOSAI 
Trustee to occupy tir :tail :ears;. 'possession or. management (separately :andlor- 

coitootiv4,/,‘TossesSiotry:Anyi.471*!110pertyot-.0010-fwv: the. Pe oposgittiostee Aeltiidtk* 
or be ;deemed Nop..erty ot Business fob airy purpose; wWsOAY-et 

tttling,,. Without 1itrtitation, within lhe--fficariasof rtheCanait lan.En.viionmeniat PeotectrottArti. 

110 ,Prfi010 tho w406#040.4.wAoi tit 
Occupatii).not Ileu11tkond110(Y AnttqatilaiJous;there.unagri.-Qr.ouy other..:ditrargriegW009.4.. 
0-40.y.  other z4piltitietible.itittstiietid147,:tatileg8 it is actually iii posse"stlotiwcontrol of thtProperty 

otAkiWno§si, 

POWERS taPROPOSAL .TRVSTEE 

:9i THIS. COVOT 0.1ktiZga that in, ,adcrition, tail* powprs,:ttfrordett ((kr WO Tt0,00401 
Troget tinder the -the Proposal 'Itfttee fteteby. authorizeiLlo:Aake ,aft, steps, 

tequired to iintilement OriVart 04441* at.IN #4#14:0 ii):010§InitAtthi*, 
ihnitatiOnrtoot 

a si0DUitde ;, '..0011040oti Of 'tilt cash-flow ttateifidiltg the 
Statements") and: reportingxequired by Notional Dank -wiliekiiitoritiatialhin 

teiiieuted with the Proposai Trustee and daiii?erea. to Ntitifontil Arland eitst 
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co:urisellin.nowrdance with PorbearanemAgrenmenvorris nthervvise agreed' to 

itqgfiti:6441,)44pk„ 

ropoittoltational Oatiko rt,*firout linitati*infnmitbn related to_.th kusmess 
of PrOlidtty:aiid, •carfyiqg otitOttheaiti$0.1)1 

repart..tathis Court 4t,suar ifiumund ihtervtiliss thelroposat 1 ustee may 
appitcptiatd Wittfittptatithilftif.8 relittirit to the Thagihe§§:Or-PropdrVi.  rind 'such. 

rnattOmAgm**);011Natittclifkgpri:nedihicit**;,: 

(a) Pave ,full rand, dliffillktO de g:. to: the BtitAidgg ,r3ropertyi  ,ineludinw the 
.0r6n1:00.. Tlookt, *pooh, la ttiottgling Alkzr 11040* .,A*1 Atrio 
.finandia-Ationatettsia5fIliindee,to, the;:exterit that 1E is nenessogror de8irifilieno 

:44:.040.414IY" ass0.ss acid .iii010r P.40d0',0 mg #0041 attai>G it tc 
kerforniats4utieaurising under this::Okder; 

to to.4i# i 4 gtpilloy f0:04 001,041**,exports} oiltwitgi ,h48,40t 
..pognsotargt spOi cttbe,r,Terarpri$ (c.oltoetivetyf'Asskfonts7)-.AS. t.deqroslva$opal,1y 
"tietdskin 'ors des ratite to " tig8ig:WithAffe:BIA. S8P forille:oarryingzattitdie 

1004.0A170•IPAC,tt-4)04, */.4k114,0 ::-1*tt:ONAtit5:04:P*114:440 

.0ert-iiithy:sudlizifituvitiag &sore re*Lid: ex: a* tourffionitilro 
to OW: 

:COOskt 01000 that no .prooWitv Qr utfOreenvit pro0Ossibi. an 001,1tt,  or: 
tril?1,1004,0•144.110-40i inienr l 01 00t 000..Aggio Ofo..ptopt*ttl'hi$ta-:6-kdOt 
vonsmt ortlieTipposaTivaimprvai lenywgiftho'Ound. 

4-1, TES. COITAT tiltrAtitgflat ira:: tidditiot to the itiOts. and ratotimgAtifirmi 
ttotiom 1-10010 tti§4:3-  0:4.*Mieer:;Of ;;oike§:$10,:0WPtOrfo41:710.010.  shall in NS' 
roliEibilf(yo obl gat birvs result -0 ifs:..Appointinpnt prliwparrying 

foray ge6S5410g1tpliet ofwilful ititteortittiottakt prL 1' ot111 

WO* Ofcr.Oillialt:406-10.f.1707*§,--Pi000§ilkArAt;40#4:00:0000:7'..f110101*10144414.0: 
nnylkapplicablelegislation. 
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ADIVIINISTRATIONTRAM 

11: IRO :.COURT ORDERS Protiosal Ob,,tia01.' to Vie:TrOpos41.: TOIStO= 
anIct.ockunsql to 1-.).i.lutiop. shall bepagjAhok.:remsonable tees and ilisbutsealoots). lrt :easili-Aaatt at 
their stardard:ratea and,xliatos, Whether prior.to cir--Atter. tiwidate tiii-s,tircierif  

tiat(,:,dt-th6 04.00.! *libjesOt to. 1110.10111* oNhe 
Agreement andiateXasit4low $utertioataatisl anyassessmentibythe Cowl, burideoakitore4 
atithorii0fai.):4 dite0(041!!fO the accounts off" the, P045.01 Tfi stee, couiti l :to to Popow 
Tru.$.ft,iarKt ponsolioDuntlow(for.mtli. performed iwoonneotion,witiv.thso.STA:procoeclings) 
tictit:Vvebkir .Wdb- •Ottitr basis 4atetifijy.Digidde atisdA1**015116tilildliayavith the 

00000 V4110.4- NOR), 8010i A0P0).iiiit 4601 414Q44.1)-- 
flovetatements, 

1%.. ',COuRfr:ORIS$Wili011iOTO:004.Urtog4oi 40.0001: 
an6;co.unsol to Dundee shall be eutt led to th be.nett of And:faro Ileroby.:grantpd .a.,obargp tthe 

"40:ogiggogio c atge"): Ofig10:.11004tIVOk 44001:§tigaqk shall  riot cee4 ip 

aggegato: amount or 02$0,000 46..soeutity 1?or. filar pro ss ant l foga ,and. dfSbloomonta 
ticuired .at Itteitistaticlard..tates; add otiarges,both. before ana diet niakhig o this Orderlii 

respect Of These j)roceo0i0is',. 11:14, Molols(ratiO4 1i#O tie .1)0.0ft. AO:t girig 
paragraphs N24  and2 6 hereof.. 

MUCTQW:1109 QINIQVIWIINIIWNIVIOAMMAIT'Pl44„ 

14. Ifilg CC 11111 OttlitikS thafbundeeAirInainatit- its dikePtor§ Pers 
obligations tie} e incur s divittor8,  or arider§ bi-Dunifed: titter. the 

ppmpigncpmentalhp:17,4(tonfppcodipp;;  pxgr optto..:111.extent that;,wW4vApqpt*.01Y'Pffi-0001  
director,_ the; or Alabililwas:,inoarred as a:resiat the;Itirecioto4::moittaer's 
Niittgle#00:0:801#41.,04.00044 

15. VIUS COM:00011$7ftiatithexlireotorvan4 Offkom.pr011ado.o 410 be cut 4: 

the Atiattit lidtdby.'gorite.ethatge (tbe,"illiteutotsdiatgei)rtgithit1r.coetw\Aloli. 
pborgo.0.1)411 not exceed attioAtja$19;900,* $014y fOtAkiltdOi#4i=ky. promo. 
hi:para aph-14.of this-OiAo., ThoDiivetore Marge shall piloWntolitirgpaapiptia,  
24 4426 herdiii. 

056 
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O... 'OM COAT' :Citi nthot;. Aotwitheanding 'any :language! in, any apptiahlw 
insurance policy to the eotinti% a: no? he .04004:10 4.!.stiO.fOtt#40:0 01411431):0- 

1WW.011:10:PitoggirgT.110rg*, onttitl) 
the behalf  ofthe Directors,  thargoilothz:extentthatAhey do not have 'overage undertow 

dit'eetOf.$'.Onti officers', tifiOuranee•OOliOY .Ofte.the 000iitthat5004,.40040 is mo..ftoioit.10511.4y: 

aspoutAA.41.10mnifigdativpeogionqovIthpgrafgafiti:44. 

FOAIWARIWPF,  

i 7, TRIS Matt .0M?lvi that. the exeetitton4  delfverrond entryInto1113undee4ttlie 

aniendeci. !grid regOted forbearance; ggi:eeinent. dated 14 **go , 017 41* :"Rirhe011Oitio 
Agreement") mad an MIX, DO *L, Duncice .Eiter.gy,  Limited ( 4.1):E1)) and ilattonal 

Teiidet and 'pont Itsg tht:fehdets (regtidli topaelq, ,the::41,endeei.) (ao:deterib'ett: triAite 

P;f0iSt Affiday4.U,IiiefehY approv d, ttcl 001140 14,10014. OnthOted oixt,ditoOtOki ky,0.040 

with and'pertentiitg.bhhgetiOtig:4indef the Forbe-aratiee Agreernentundifie-ornerided agd.felltat04 

6t001it 'UOOrt00 11gPii.; POITOsot 1)T3ty *710„ P9P4.4t:k1440:: Af ah  ITO 
lender dated asx•til iliVaot 2, as,arnended (thez9ereditAgreemene), 

T: ,.COURT' eittotit thaie-fithiaio)itifit; 66 6ittri%iir,.0,ie-dt: us.41.6::tathig 

:Credit  AgeoglenCand F.:Orbipgiolop Agreement, to contiungA Qhffilw, no ttgrkow,,.repay44.1.  

ieb-ortow.teditionat monterzaiterthe.,ttedivitidithy.  granted under the :Credit Agreement Oho 

"01:0111 f4.0.101 *IL MO :I40:440;'.1toitifcitit:to Ahot::QtAilit Agree loit 04 to 'poopoo#00 

Agreement, in ;oder. to finance= Ot.uitizeg working :0400 xequiTementa, p.rnyided, hat 

horrowing§ihyZiindeentitterthe.eitait Fatflitrighili:NatItOttatliel Aiiiouhtt:astitattifattetti-i-. 

Agromohtf4d0;*.F0th04004: Aggemoilf,.po•gtogoiottoyfity: tbg riffidgf0.4.1140 
entitled:to-Apply receittts andtlepositxmode to?Dandee''s harik:aecoutaagoinstithe indebtedness: 

Of Ptinti0,,t0 the 4100 in, itgodoito with the ctoctj.t: ,Agegompot--toct tub f0tbeAratidb 

Agreement, yhotherpaiindbte(1110$s:arQseibtfmPrAftpr thedateetta0,01eA 

19,,  THIS COURT :ORDEIZSAlitit biiiidezAglierdby authorized atittempnwered to: to: 

OA: 0001,i:. such credit tigi:p*Oritg; 'WM** !.1-y.tottoo-4 aid toototy..0000*titt 

guarantees7:or other definitive dootanehts.,Ohe Vethirtive:Difeumente%,,EW.We';vontompltite-4 by 

the Porbtakalia Agteetheht it* as nta3 .1j6-sea'gotitibly nolired by the pursuant:4o .,the 

tefOS 111,-otifig goo: oon tosigRatgi bq,.*00.4 viswoy ply)* Ato 



Lender and torisented ta•rthe Proposal Ttusteei  atabiindildthevictiglietetly::atithorized4dd 
.difeeted td pay atiii liefffti .01 of its indebtednegi  idtgtOti  To* 1101114.0 and of ligtitiOtigAti 
the.Lender:underata pumfiatolli-e Otodit.AgMantaancl the F.orbeatOM.Agroement asAnd 

§arrie btOitie clue 'tuitL:kitolo :boletOtiiic(4 OPOtigioding. any o:dier:provistotY this 

0010r: 

:20, nus. Como opp-.ttNit 4%.14010"04* Vstiog liens, ohatig04:tiottgggooqtii4 
qt101-imbr.ariges f n fai ur ptth toz114q4iagAefamrity :f.pralt:erthephfikatioAsirDwAeed9111§ 
Ienderllaftfig:to:adilantes rnadtcto:Dundeefunder:thettedit Padility:fromitnd atierthelaie,4 
this Order #10 4elidet .:$401tWo4itled tO:::thefietlOtif of andiWoroytorited.4:011440:'.(tilto.3'.`,4.1r 
Charge") on The. PrppettY, leave mit imparasrepbolt And 

<26 aiereaf;: 

21, THIS.001.110.01triERSthati. up:on. fhe :earlier of the eettrrencevfererminationlyent 
.0 the. ja#::day'of thk.F.p0Oarano:Porod.6n cacti case OtlOpped in the FOtheatane6Agreetildnd4 
4W:tender. oloy , 

Ca) itnnitdititely adageirrikitlgtthatites:toljuildet; 

:70) sot off....andloregns.olidate, any;:aniorita 00Ingltiltf40#10)::::to .0141:0 
obligatibnszt Dundem.  the tenderundertlieer.editlAgreement ilio:Vtorbeaunteq 

AgN011.0:4;,AOST Ofilte:0*.lit.ppool0 defined 

lhotteilatiyertioptionrits Aad. 

apply.0 tfsr otart fora0 :poor, autl lz ng the Lender exeittwatitand all;:o 

anilierneaes, against tbn#00 Wiliel.r0:1564t4040 04.000.0(0. :00 
.gredit-Agrterne4..-thoilorbeara.nee .*Aoreenlent,:dio,. other Credit Doeurae*Abet,  

.D.01154.0* P0000t.itOi. the PIP tirtho poptigt.  poom Aoge 

contort()) or similar .14alatfon: in,: any ofher: briaddlcga,, 

'withoor lint tailof to tivif this Court for The :appointment) of 4 :rix6iqi 

deceiver, Arid f#444/0f:!..i*:#40tjt receiver in foopot sPrOperiA icrf:fOr 
bankruptcy, order against Etnndee and. ...for the .,:apRoftitment :or a:: 'Uusiqe: 

'=bankruptcy OfbulittettEritlAt-fOintiftig:riibts anitteKkidie§- flier Untie shall 
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be mformabib against any Itustee in bankruptcy, interim receiver, receiver or 

rpfYe*et *tiO niauagor:orP.untle-Ottlio Pifo*Vi 

22. Tits coma ORDERS OD: 1).EMAIIES; *who rider l: hoonotkotealrthe 
stay of prOceeiffivsprovided fOr iii se;c-tfott69 -or60,i 

goraT ontgs: onti OZCLOUS: ihtitAle payments' mad by  

pursuant ttif thirs: ;brad; the Credit Apernenti Pnrbtaranee..Agreetnent,, the bther :Gra& 

poduni:orits. or: Any-Qt ti*Dofirlitiyc P44tiniontsi anktbrantinapf the CUP. cliagtg,....ap::.nalfM, 

will -riot zotstittitel proference. fiatifulont •,ocnwerneesi:fronsters t undervalire; Ivipteestve:! 

040gffibtd:010da*WA11.400.0.40.40qAPY appli.Ohle 

VALIDITYAND ffitliWritreoPataaja; ertitAllai gratkOMjit, 

q41 THIN coP417 Alt. 3110,  154000 'Of Vie. ACIO1i113sitAt10 P1100; .01-0' 
Dim-tore C.chargo; the t :0lititge and #lie -•geotitity its defined the.  Cteclit Agreetnentj 

geionocixtb .1404pr eves tt e Ptgt*ttAgoioigit*OIA....WtYp'OO*10**,  

A.4niiinistra•tion las (Wheingximmanwuntota$0,0119);; 

eor Dr. Chatgo:  

gmteil to *10:14ptler Tor, pnrAmmit c: the Cre.Oit Agreernent:.(aigl 

dtediibedin thdrPothenitildeakgteenient); arid 

,e0argo,;(*ibmtPciinunl:wouot:4)110;009): 

25. 'THIS COURT tittiitit8 that the lihng):Tegiatationet peifeetitm dilie,Adnilitidratt• 

Chpyge, Ate .,DV0.00.S" .Q4.:itO, or the pjp. sctigito.:0:000*014 .the "Ch0601"Yliff.ilt lot be' 

tor:tat-4. and: that 'the Charps::shall be vatianit etiforteahlw.for purpang, iineinding;ns•: 

:against any right, Mite or :4iteifeg f4edc  kegWotedi. :leeerdesi ot. perfected subsequent AO the 

Charges. emin. :e. 4tenc.e,. netwittOkttOitig.:44. ,Avh_-001:00: 1110; OtAtkit *04 Or 
:perfect. 

2& '1[1,1.p c91):10 ?TIER that 44.91t: :ti: o 014 :00titat owtigi..011 tfit 

Prqp.erty, fSQ.- .9harged by them:  ah4; such Charges; Shall Oa in :pricaityy. to Igtit ct r Vg.WAY 
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interests, trusts.., liens, :Charges And encumbrances* diaiins of secured :ore torn . sfEttufory or-; 
otherwise (eolleetIvelyi-4%neitM1)P4neosl in favotirlAny Peron, othoethoTokiipot 
QrsIPr et 04:r004);:rmaligitY,parkotedAnd.,enfOrpolito‘tgQ11c4 intcratai arty in. favour: .of.  &ex 
WiitiarnortNittor .8Alestinitt4 Sim PattisonindustriegyttdArNationatIessingptoupintOrt 
each ease under -the''personalp0perey S0001SrROgis(rY (00400)), gn0101t Ltd 
under the.PersonalPropertf Socurity'ReWstry(Athertal.. 

TH14; POPRT 9. RS. That 4.0.0.0 Kolhooitao exl r tjtil :9totuottiotoi- pe-.0 
may.be,appmyedby•This Court, Dundee shaft not. rant any .Eneurnbrances gyerAny Prooerly 
that rank in plipilty to, nrporPOstrWitliattV.t15 Ititehargesi triless,Dttridee 

Prior written consent, ,of the Pmposat 'T.Aulteet. the .:L.ender. and :the henet)g.,47 ;Of giO 
Administration Charp-dind theiiirector0 Charge or fixtbettorderthliis eciurt 

a., nos 001WR$..that the  ebargeS; :the:IOrhearadee,Agiteinent,, the:  C044 
Agreernenti  the cltheteitedit„Docutnents and. the Definitive bottinlOht8-.sbali.1101 be rendered 

illttilicI.0t4400k*OtitiA004.' fights  :4-04A0X010 t1 e''01101g00 000..0.4 to benefit 
the charges (ColleetiVely,iihethargetelandkutifeturaler,Shall odVoilierwise:Wihnitad'Ar 
fr.npanieet in any  -way by '.ttiv. pendency. of these „proceedings: .And the xteclaraiibmg 
insolvencylnade4lerejt t444Y-ttpolteettP4(s`)1fer kinlqnptey oitder(sy...issuei;kparsuatit:14 
btiawbatilthipter orderaisle pursuant to sueb applteations; :(0).,theiitlIng.or any assents 
fOr thegetierki lienefitrOf 0000 f0Adeporaoritw.the:..BtAiir.(t lhovrtivItionabf any federal 
or proOttOiat statutes; -:or(). any .negatiVeipckyenant§, prOilitt* O‘r. citligr sitigtor siOvitiOnt 

debt brtitetteattoktfrii teumbraneegt. contained in ?out 
existing Waif 'keliniteititS,, Wise.;  ,:.s4131.004 Affgrteleas'.0. oittigoqi0* #(41:doii?-dlyi  

"Agreetnen0): Which bindS! Dundee or: the tionde4 and votWithstandinwatkrproviSioniTto the: 
ciPAteitryinatity AgrqetnonoT 

(a) neither lbw creation of the: Charges:3 nor the oxoeution, 3)*-Orto.otiOr4 
ttoiattiftmi otperfoititinea4 the.Poitettratoo.AgreemontiAho Orriklit VOotonnt.i. 

sthei: .,otter Credit. 17004ijota g10 l fxi kve Documents $411 s0§.10 or h-e. 
deemed. to constitute a breariblay Dimilee or the :Lender otany Agreementlix:  
whiciiItyrone at th 
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Done of the.thargeor.shalt. have any. I iabiliqtaylay 1'ersort4hatseevern:alunit 
Of any breach of any caused AftOrtio#4114.  f..remPttolooightottokkoo: 

tilei:go.rbe,arAnge. greement,::the ,i-414Agroom.:fflit.t.bccither:O*Iiillogumenfs :or 
the ',Degnitive Documents rit the creation .;cif the 1har.ge8: 'the tke6iitii4 

or pprfOo#0000 of. atiy,::Siteli deo:0004,  and" 

-the payments made by Ditodee jilltstItta:this 6E16  10110f fdtheatariee.  

.40;eiriei*•*.ci**...A0044.44 §,•\thtt::.:c044:170.0#04-tt Of_ *POO** 
Dgetrinarits pr. ...the:. gi,atitiow har[itvoo. do ri01F. arid: VOL not constitute 
.pre-teittiees..;, fraudulent tonV0yairees,!.tratisters.,:tomdervalue; OpteSSW0,7414444., 

040.0,1401.14hgegileoy yoldahle.framntiosAndereey 

THIS ?.2 (WM',  CoRtiEllSitiatziwAttie it 'otatiteitbraits bifiiertwar Tettseoe 

itOOPtepeitlittriahadaA41101Y.Vkaeliatige:itil 1)46000,000tekkatiettial:PrOtlelliritatiW. 

EXTENSION.OVTik0119 PROPOSAL 

COURT-014)00 th.at,s0hicsgt:t9 ivolgr401. 2 orthis Oral 04 the .,time within 
.whieli,alhoposal.mustbeffiledFwith the:Offielal Iteeeiver-tmdetseethinAtO) o1 1hell1A.0  .anti clre: 

egrieSpending Stay-ol:•prodoolno: 4ded tot etiou tho?.:131:Ai  be .and are here y 

0).4Wed. irr . rice rd mice', with Ace._dgri.',M4(9), of,:the.E4Ajp AuctiriehOii-i9,30 *October .2411 

SWIM A.INailciTICID 

THIS :COVIIT OIOIDRg that IN: e-Smitclo givtried. of the. ::Cornmerclei 14't.(the 
"Prottieoll is approved by:reference herein acid,, fir this protteditilhe:=SerVied 

documents 40c..0.-43:000 COfft.ftietRi70:(0-001 oti.#0.1.1114h4;43h1b&OitittecAii Lt: 

vu'ebsite t 1ttp:/tivwmontsdoeoorta,ea/sej/praetieelpraetieeAireetionsttoronto/eserVtee  

commercial//.  slftill tje 1444 and 'effective : 40100; it00 tins OrderSh 11 

09.0000 ;40 oraeg:  fgt ,itihothite4,:$pm.04: poohootioli4k 16;0,  of-heAhtogamir p1:004,40; 

tc0.:tit tfietliutes Civil,Pioeettoteamalwagtratitt 2d ottho.trivi000t:!servii:W, 
of Ooctitoortw. it1 000000 wi#04.0. p.totoeol. Mill" he effective On trattSmisSion::, dOtt: 

fOrtlwrgrdP r. that ':olatiftc-,p.p:101,10e0:..iTcapoordancp!. with 
follovir4,1114,t httpitofctfadailiboriwitiq:.00totoatcletv 
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32, :TRW t.dear ORIA114 that bundeeillio Proposal trustea,: entmset 
liberty sio,.0,0: titoitiowlhio,f000k  ow4t40 jAgegio 004::,otooko.f.).4y. Q:-,: b. 
required jwitme.,-prcippoolp,incluxiing pyraptiqp4,.."..er OThervorl•esporgionog,:br forwanling4ruP 
copies thereof by elettronittiniegsa9e to:flundee'.?s,  oreditors:.or.other intorested 15artieS, and:their 
0-.01.§00 gye4tof .err~ At A09 .0-0.01f, tp4o.ib.000. 4-01 be ho A 
stktioadipork.0* legal .or judillgof Oblimibitfirtil_stotimixocogromentoj: within the moaning of 
0.4006. 1.0.) 0-005 pototito c0)0fry1000 ;PeOteeiluif ,AdpiiatiOi7g?  Rdge 81:00a2-175 
(SOR/DORS)'. 

that rf the,seriiiee;:or dboutnentstin 

with. thtl?mtp.p.ig joalcitivrActiwp, ptimipf):Anct the Proposal Truse,AreAt titotr, 
Astributo -this bride4,,any 'tither materials ; and .aders hithese proeeeclinip, taw: notice` rother 
eOtteb-Punatien, by foAa4ling true OPieS thereOf 04Pai.4 Ordinary *it; .00ttot per n 

=delivery :or &cattalo: transiniSsion to illtinideo,s: orators or other jiiterestog ,th* 
0:40* 4tit: tig :re0Orclkdf ',12440 f.An4 45.0 =such service stir 

distribution by . oourier, personal delivery •0r faeSirnilh itfoisnitsffun, shall "bee cleerned to be 
ietelitaloitthe ties tisusiness day ililleiwN.theAtitt iberto4.ior itoentby•,ordtriat2 

:#411; of :tiw3414.4igtoo,ditr 

dki4gitAt 

THIS COURT ORDERSAhat Dundee the PropciSat Ttuttee niay froth flute to.trne 

appl to 000 advice Egict 4i,r00044: in t 414011446 of 0104 ':::.014800 and  ,41410* 
tumult-1m 

THIS -0)1j10 DIMARkth41: nothing in11.1§ cifOr',0011#6: Trtl§te6  
ftom ofinVas-411 hiteiint reoolvor,A receiver, a reoivey: an0:11140u9r,,pr gt4:441-eo in. .hplcrtu$cy 

of-put:1000i ti*Bioioskdtthe Prtipbriy. 

1.6, THIS 0)VittlelnORY REOLTS$T$:,-00.:4KW:1400441110*. Absf: gotilkortilisj 
regulatory btAditinisttative 'body having.... jurisdiction .in .Canadacoritv thotliiitoa Sitxt#4,:t0 
Off0010 tilt* Orclor .404 to assist DufidOt,' the pt0p041 TrnStd0::010:tlierrreStit di:06.6011.ft in.  

quoing.puCtileAerrna of this Order Ali; courts;  tribunals, regulgory Arid 4arnititS(t4tiO 
timlvtreWxittpeoftillgttgUt-StOdtMnkEike, snalizoixfors:•vid toroviii6 voltigasktfave 

Pfici101*P.:00001 Of4401e0f0410"cOttl4 tom: h.o..-rt.ogottor.o..r:014140.10:1# 
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effect: to this. Order, to grant representative status to the: Proposal trustee in any foreign. 
isroete'ditig,: or itt.asSist Dundee aticithe PropOSal Trustee:.:'and their respective :agents in otitilit, 

Out trOzwimof this Ordcr.. 

57, THIS etotlIttilt ERS,:that eacif..aDttlidebetikleildentid diet?roposal.TrUsteeile, 

at liberty and:areterebyAthOrliedand eiiipowered apPayle. an curt, tribnnal,regtilatory or..  
administrative bandy; -wherever located)  Tor the tecognition of this,.:Order and. foz asststimooziti 

terms of this p410; 040.1041 the Propppg:Tru$too to otoixoti 00...*400,#.400 

to act,  as a :represeritatiVein respect of the within proceedings for the purpose of Having thesp 

proceedings .recognitedfin jutiSdictIon outside:Canada; 

a TIM COligrOVIXERfttfitany interested, tty NOW:big DundoeAbeliender And 
thtltoptAarttugteeythw 4.0irth.twiti,distittitsti VdtrorattideAthit :Other billiottets•::thal3 SeVeti 

(7)04ye•;:ii0-0e.;.t4 any kifliet partY*,pattleCliYeIY toj*Affected:.;hY the;;Ordef$Onght tpt VO`zl . 
such :"other fiedieet  daffy; At this ROurVititirbta64:prmildedi,hOwAvooha the Londer thin be 

00.00.10 KV on this  Q4'00 M-,*.ne4.-,tot 411:0040044.itade and pOtootif.0:.0:40,:vo :000111§. • 

CoditAgreernent or the Agreement up-  to andinaludiag0e date: this 'Order. may: to 
vagetfaarnendedi 

:39;; VMS mum' QR0Egs that thjOr.aer and till :WM prOylSichs are: etrJ,Y0::  

alit astemStandardinaYlighttinie,Janlhe date of this (Wet 
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SULK A 

Dundee Energy Sale Solicitation Process 

1, On:August 15, 2017-, Dundee Energy Limited Partnership and Its general partner, Dundee 
Oil and. Oas limited .(together, :the "Debtors") filed •A Notice. of Intention to Make a 
;Proposal pursuant to. the Bahiruptcy and iitrolvdney. Act .(Canada) (the "NOT 
.Pieceediogs"). Fit Consulting Canada Inc. rFT.I") was appointed as the proposal 
truatte (the "Proposal Trustee") under the NM Prodeedings. 

2. in connection with the NOrProceedings, the Debtors intend to bring 'a motion before the 
Ontario Superior Court of justiee (Commercial List) the "Court") for an _order (the 
"Sale Process Order") approving, ihter alio:, a sale solicitation proccaS (the "BIA,SSP" 
or "Sale Process") as described in this document. The purpose of the gale Process is to 
seek proposals tO purchase some or all of tht. assets, Undertakings and properties of the. 
Debtors (collectively, the. "Property") and to implement one 'or a conibination. of 
:transactionslopurchase some or nil of the-Property. 

3. The STA SSP describes the Manner in which preSpectiVe bidders (a) ntay gairt access CO 
or continue to have -aceess to due diligence materials concerning the Debtors;  their 
business and operations (Ow "Business") and the Property; (b) the, wanner .in wkt eh: 
bidders And WAS become Qualified Bidders and Qualified Bids (as defined below.: 
respectively; (e) the process for the evaluation of bids received; (0), the process for the,  
ultlinate selection of aSnecessful Biddei (as defined below); and (e) the process for 
obtaining such ,approvals (including the.'approval of the Court) as may be necessary or 
appropriate in respect.of a Successful 

Defined Terms  

4. An capitalized terms used ttialik SSP and not otherwise define4 .1100:1110Ing 
given. to:thembelow: 

"ApprovalVtotion" asdefinedin paragraph 31; 

"Business" :111041% the businesabeing carried on hy the Debtors;. 

"Business Day" Means a day, other than a Sattuttay'br gdtidayt. torl:Niiiitch batiks are open 
.for business. intheCity of Toronto; 

"Claims and Illiterate as defined in paragraph* 

''titiiilidentititIniornikient.Meinerandutn" as defined in paragraph 8(d); 

"Court" as defined inparAgFaPh 2; 

"Difta Room" as define.dinpartigraph 13. 

"Debtors" as defined hi. Paragraph 

"Deposit" as defined in paragraph 24(in); 
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'Tinalaitras dofinedinpararaph 23; 

q!orm otOurellaseAgreonorit' ineansihe term of puteliaseaalloatolfgrteifttit.10.-1*. 
(1:e8-101QP00:15..*:#10.:?i9P94u:Ti4teP;..0041)kY.30441.0 I3i4011A1i0;$14.004* 
.c)nalfiedlib; 

:"FTI"fik (10404Vpatagi.,401): 1; 

"Ki4m4-.1.)ntet#141.B1(14eirsr gs:40.filiOd. in paragapti 8.(b);', 

er",meatis Xatinnai ftankaptCanack- 

ItOr as dewed in verffp4pY 

IftgDA# §116§tiltidt. Sattatettily103h0 
Proposal Trusi*e-,...m.thici-cwilthure:::;tnihehone-atibrany-pur4iaser.  of ihe,:alrnpex0; 

s,NCiffinceedirige.antafinefirkparagpOlt 4 

Nistfdet:ftgletilicaleipplippi 

"T oot oofoolti...-p4ifogroti 

Thase:tifotbadonev auleflookin-pitr. 

'' Phais6.:2 as..definettlo.patagrapli A 

atAdinblinpatagaph:23 

BiddeeisdOefitied nrpaiagii tph:9  

"I'OriPttet.4#0.#0140'.:#00t* 0%1,04 440**t.410110;:g -- 

VikaiitipitiirmauslciliiraPkiiirPfthgrpur4hae gr all:  of the PrppP .  

#1040f1 

rttoos41 14000.01.0,1501,41.): I;: 

fled 

l` nth 
fl)iin.-0001f04.11.0110 

TQw(0004:11.10itte*:40rttig.0 itihtio4gretiM.:01. 

oas.(1400.14n. patsgrob 1.$; 

4Sak;Ri4gessiardpiro asAidinexiin,Raragr.aph 

4`SutossfaBiilo dtfinediriparagvh.2:Anti 

"TeaseewsAbiliied hiptawatdi,...t4 
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:Conduct: Sale Proeess,and  

The. Propostirrrustoo shall linploniont,the Process: the.tilo Prooess':Orderarictilio 
131A SSP Shall JOelti4yOlY:gOyernilie,topeosp fOfsOliPitingand,selopting Qualitkailda, 

The Debtors are tocrp.iirgd. assist and support the:  off:0*qt 0* ptoi)001 7410,to 
'nndertaking the.. Sale Process: In the -event 'that: them clitasreorlient as to: °the 
`ii to appliP4tion: of the 133-A. SSP *Vie respOliSibilit* the sPl'opbstil 
TrustCe °rho Dobtors herthrider tine Ciittrt=will have jurigdletroti toliftetuchzmatter 
proyide-a(MPeanit. (*options, upon avillotition hythoProposal ;Trostmor the Debtors: 

71*TO110-*Inkttihre:*OtsAq the tos.riii1O*000 undei thO'BIA SSP, stibjePt to extension 
:by.the.Proposal Trostoopursnahrto and lithedordilliteVititthelUkSSP!:::  

.tiAlleitortie treadline, 

Orri"1COM10b.6te. ':SePtqn14049:1:1 

P406,4:Ptil Pe4t1.#00 - Oct000r1944:1: 

Plia$0.1.,131i1Tieadltiie NOVeffilieflitli)17. 

Siittle:itiit.diittdit(64bindlitOsset purchase agreement with , 
NIPOOt t01110000#41.04. 

()acornbet 442017 

- .. 
ite-ibtAlithli.k.Apj?tii5i.a.t IiiiiitibtiU466td.. beeeiribdat  2611.... 

0o04.00e.transaCtion with SuccessfulDicid4r i0bPaTY be  0111.'   . 

Ooportunity  

8. As :soon as practica4 ollowi g 'tssuarmq, of the -:Salo Piooemi: Order, the Proppsal 
"Tfot*sliall: 

cause a notimottlio Sale Piteess..(atra suoh .otlierM6antitiformationvitiPhAhef 
ffrOtp:061 Trui0e:-.popsiders apprOpriateIlo 1541)46M:1W in-li1e.:1)011y-:01:4401..ettni 

edition ::of The 'Moe 04:  kft/11,.:Otthe*itiri0 date,.. the 
press release settillwopi.mlevaDt information: from such noi10%--witt 

P41)40* l'iWs*ite cloigrott.: oisoopiigooffii 11).;. C41100 41'4, 
cenireiln the Unitoci Staten: thewNotice% 

;(b) iwc0§111fillt0D.,,with tho-Debtoit, the LAWPDADO gny othor:stalco.1101(10r as ,deemed: 
spproptlatoN the 'PropoSal Trhst000  prOpareti f lat of  persons may au 
intetvitiitsubmitting4hid.fortho Prp.petly r.otentia1lli1idcws1; 

Pfeistfro,  a iloo00iifirdOtaii)1'10000.t IOtoi (the "TreaSeit)')" (leSejtibRig the OPP640.11itY 
to aoq!:tirelodio,:tli ot,sti batanthilitaltof the Property to beltiadeavailatilo by :the;: 
Proposal 1),..nsto,g Nnowix:f.POtentlal '810dprs,, along with 

(a) prepare gvoonfidenfiainfOrmition memorandum: Oho litfOrmation... 
Memprwjlorpr) ppkOttiihig k 'potion .0 the 
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Property, which will be made available by the Proposal Trustee to Qualified 
Bidders who ,execute the NDA. 

Participation Requirements  

9. In order to participate in the Sale Process, each persona "potential Bidder"), Must 
deliver to the ProposalTrustee at the address specified in Exhibit "A": 

(40- a letter setting forth the identity of the Potential Bidder; the contact information 
for such PoteMial Bidder and fh11-. diaelosnre of the principals of the Potential 
Bidder; and 

,an executed NDA, -which, among ether things, shall> include provisions whereby 
the Potential Bidderagrees to accept and be-bound by-the MA SSP,- 

10. A Potential Bidder that has executed .art.NDA„ and has delivered the documents.:and 
information described above, and that the Proposal Trustee, in its reasonable :business 
judgement, determines is likely, based on the availability of finaneing, experience and 
other considerations, to be able to consummate -a transactiOnto-acquireseme'er all of the 
Property (Including any liabilities to be assumed) Will be deemed a "Qnalitied Bidder";  
and be promptly notified a such determination:by the Proposal Trustee, In no event 
shall t,Ite Lender constitute a. Qualified. Bidder, 

At, any One during Phoei l ctr phoo, the Proposal Triistee may, in its, -reasonable 11, 
business judgment and .after eansultation with: Lender, eliminate a:Qualified Bidder 
from the ...Sale Prop*, whereupon such bidder Will be eliminated. frOin the Sale Process 
and will no longer be a Qualified Bidder: 

Phase 1  

For a period- cif,forty,five (45) 'days following the date ,upon which; the Netice Is first 
published,. the Proposal. Trustee (with . the :assistance of .t Debtors and in occoitkinCC 
With the BIA SSP) will 'solicit a rain-binding indication of interest in the forrnof a: non-
binding letter of intent moil from each Qualified Bidder who may be interested in 
aCquiring all or a pOrtiOn'ofthe Property ("Phase 1"), 

1:3.. The Proposal Trusteewill provideeath QualifiedBidder who has executed an 'ND:A with: 
a copy of the Confidential Information 'Meirterandum and access tO an ,electronic data 
room of due diligence information (the "Data Room") The Proposal 'Trustee, the 
Debtors and the Lender make no .representation or warranty as,  to the information (i) 
contained in the confidential Information Memorandum. or the Data Rooms  (0) provided 
'throu4h, the due-diligence process in Phase 1 or Phase 2 or (iii) otherwise. Made available 
to n.Quolified Bidder, except to the extent,expresSlY Contemplated in•any definitKie sale 
agreement with a Suecessful Bidder duly executed and delivered by the Debtors and 
approved by the Court. 

14. A. Qiialified Bidder that wishes to have the opportunity to submit a Qmalitle4 Bid as part: 
OfPhase 2.must deliver an LOT. to the Proposal Trustee at the address ,specified in Exhibit 
7.Ar by no laterthan 12:00. (Eastern Time) on'crotoo.01:201.7„or suet" (41)0 date 
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or time as may 1?e agr9ed by :thP.,A-E9P9$01::ThigteQ (tliP„'''thnsg 1 1)0 lidline"); 'The. 
Proposal: Trustee shall be eatitledt0:10iiide;oopio ;01.11.0-  10:itceiye0 to lhe.Debtdo, 

ilie•Lender. 

be considered a"Qualgigt 1,PrOply 

VIis submitted by a Qualified Biddeeatid received by:A-4:0.0W ...POD*** 

gett,outtlie,, puiAtite‘thifw.tAnge fin anadlatr dcillattliffid 'as, twat totvitittk: 
including details of.anyjlabili4s to be..astqwecr1:.by the QualifieC18144011 :41w1g! 

•:.4$ to the Qualified Bidder' itttedd:s t6c"Valt*Ifer17:4414. 
evitkethe AtleinOSS;; 

(e) W.C40t10.0:attOit ls.,e0,000410 subject atoi.o 
thel'iropem .expeeted- to be excluded;  

.(d) .contains specific ndication o 0'4,1.0211.0es of mital feethe-OualiTiedAWdet and. 
eack* pfloav labil ty of,A0011 capital,. giqb ;other  :ft*, 

fifiantiat dittiostimut etedit-0•61ity§iippm tillfarianidiii ilia wilt.:6116-vmhe. 
Pl'oposal TiliOep.to makeltIreasQiiabi.e.liuiirtewiN pro. SSiorgit judgmnf.:Emig.*,  
Qualified liiddelE!a,  110001 44.6thef 'Otsabitititgto onstrmmate!the tiWa-etioin 
oaiternplatedbyitalUl'i  

.epntiarigailewription0 the 4tr.t.le..0Areerid fivaueii?.g:Drttip,transacPPx),.:(lt4u4tg; 
but r10:W4.1.4i. thessources of fnancing of the :purchase price, preliminary 
,oidentc or.fhoi. availability s:•fluch Ananeing,, steps necessary and, associated. 
.thAing:t0.0taitgOik.finanei4 and any00*.0000g0001.4;:siontipotog 

cottta its: daet !piled ioPthe:undittaig and approvals recitiked for 
bindi% Offer,:including Any ;:tntioii)tited.'oorporatei. wuyity hcilOpri  cliitorpo .or 
regulatory ,600** )ttio:ito oloe the tiansactionii e§tilliatt: the 
anticipated flame and any imii610.6ietl impediments for obitittalg stVh. 
obrOy..gls; 

oattottietpeeific gtnteittetitg Wiieerningfhe tteatmetwof employdev • Ofittaibr. 
ihoPogolitzinvplYeroeaandx.al§s:pfilwgebias' employees; 

e(h) eoritain0,.aniotitlige.9fanY additional Atte dili#0000,..re4U3 ed to be leoridneted 
theQnalified:giddeviiveirdet tolttbrnitatnal and,bitiding offer; 

ftillytlisaosertfieAdentity :Of Dadb person (heTuding:artyperspo that_DexItrols.sueb 
gor$44):tat.N011,40,41teofly of hicliiebily;Vai§pillig.-oepoititibathiit. in-lhe bid and 
the :complete ferma:of any such par tioipatiOn

enntninAlt conditions to -616Sing tat f.hd (Natifted• Bidder May wish to iippose; 
and 

.(k) contains such other infermatien'as may reasonably be requeste4 by the Proposal 
Trustee. 

(c) 
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16. The Proposal Trustee, in consultation with the Lender, may waive compliance with any 
one or more of the requirements specified above, and deem such non -compliant LOI to 
be a Qualified LOT, provided that doing so shall not constitute.a waiver by the Proposal 
Trustee of the requirements of the fere,going paragraph or an obligation on the,Part of the 
Proposal Trustee to designate any other LOI as a Qualified LOL The Proposal TTustee 
will be under no obligation to negotiate identical terms with, or extendidentical terms to, 
each Qualified Bidder. 

Assessment of Qualified LOIs and Continuation or Termination of SakProtess 

17. Within three (3) days folloWing the Phase 1 Bid Deadline, or such later date as may be 
determined by the Proposal Trustee, the Proposal Trustee will, in consultation with the:  
Lender, assess the Qualified LOIs: received during Phase 1, if any, and will determine 
whether there is a reasonable prospect of vibtaining a Qualified Eidl, The Proposal 
Trustee may request clarification from a Qualified Bidder of the terms of its 'Qi~ahf eel:  
LOL 

1.8.. In assessing the Qualified LOIs, the Proposal Trustee, following .consul of iitO• 
Lender, will consider, among other things, the following: 

(a) the forntand amount tlf consideration being offered, ixtelitding any pUrchase 
adjusttnentsatid/or anynoncash consideration; 

the demonstrated financial capability of the Qualified ,Bidder to censuromte the 
*.oposed transaction; 

(p) the conditions to closing of the proposed transaction!, and 

(10 the estimated time required to complete the proposed trguisaptiort, 

19. if one or more Qualified LOIs ate received And the Proposal Trustee, exercising its 
reasonable business judgement and following conaultation with:the. Lender, determines 
that there is a reasonable prospect that a Qualified LOI may become a .Qualified. Bid, the 
Proposal Trustee will continue the Sale Process into Phase-2 in accordance with the 13IA 
SSP. 

20. If the, Proposal Trustee deterinines that (a) no Qualified LOI. has been received or :(b) 
there is no reasonable prospect of a Qualified LOI resulting in .a Qualified- the: 
Proposal Trusteemay, in its sole and absolute discretion, designate oneor more LPIsias 
Qualified LOI. If no Qualified LO1-is received 'or designated by the Proposal Trustee,, 
any of the Lender, the Proposal Trustee, or the Debtors may apply to the Court for Anther 
adViee and directions ineluding With respeettO terrninafion of the BIA S$P. 

21. Following`-the. Phase I ll d Deadline the Proposal -Trustee specifically reserves the 'right 
to negOtiate with any Qualified 13idder with respect to any prevision at it$,:Lcot to 
request or agree to any-  changes in any such LOL The Proposal Trtistee may Choose to 
take such steps with.respeato one or more than one Qualified Bidder OA .Propcml. 
TrUstee ,shall have. no obligation to tiegothlte identical terms with,. or extend identieal 
terms. to,:eaah Qualified Bidder. The Proposal Trustee reserves the right to request some, 
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but:not all, QUalified Bidders to satin:it a revised LOI reflecting intproved.terms. or other 
athendments requested by the WOO:sal ']Trustee, The proppsal Trustee Will be Oder no 
obligation.  o.provide eacliQualified Bidder the opportunity to improve:terms of any 1:;01 
submitted to the Proposal.Trustee following the Phase I )11);I:  Deadline, 

Phase 2  

22, Bach Qualified l3idder' with a Qualified toial who. has been invited: by.  the ProPOSai 
Trustee to participate; in Phase arid-a:Late request of such Qualified,Biddet,-. itsQualified 
Advisois (as defined below), will be granted fOrther access to such. -diligence 
materials and inforniation tflating to. the Property and the BitaineSs as 'the Proposal 
Trustee in its reasonable business judgement„ determines .appropriate, 
information or MaterialS reasonably requested by each Qtialified Bidder, (in-Site 
presentations and tours. of the Property; and .acc.ess to further ittfortnation in :the Data 
Rom.  C91)hase 2"). J addition; selected due diligeneematerials may be withheld from a 
:Qualified Bidder under PhaSe 2 if the. Proposal TruStee detennines such information to 
represent proprietary or sensitive competitive information....°Qualified AdviSors7 means, 
the legal and rilloolo .advisors) atidior: lenders te a Qualified .Bidder, ProVided that;  in 
each Case,:  :such advisor or lender: (a) is reasonably aceeptable to the Proposal Trustee; 
and (4).....bas. executed ortsboun.d by the filf)A. 

23.: A Qnalified that is not eliminated From. the ,Sele: ProCeas and that Wishes. to 
proceed must deliver the. Proposal Trusteetifinal bindingproposal to-purchase some or 
all of the, Property (a .‘Tinal. Bid') including a:dttly:autherized and. executed nut:Chase 
agreement based Ort the Form of purchase Agreement and accompanied by a Markitip,of' 
the Form of.Purehase Agreementshowingsmendinents. and modifications.madelhereto, 
tOgetheri44 all exhibits and schedules theretOs.and stielLaricillarYligreemeritaiaa may be 
required by :the Qualified Bidder; at the address specified in Exhibit ."Air hereto. (incliAing..,  
by :email ,Or 'fax transmission) so .as to be received by jto.. PrOPOSal 'frosted t•y no i for - 
than 12:00 pan. (Eastern Time) on November 24 20171  or such!other date or time as 
may be.determinedbyAhePioposal Trustee in eonsnitationvith the (dm Vhase:2 
laid Deadline").  

24. A: Final Bid. will be cOnsidered aQualtfied .Bid only if (ayitissubmitted by a,  Qualified 
:Bidder who :submitted a. Qualified 1,01 on:or before the Phase 1 Bid Peadline;Or Whose 
LOI was designated as a Qualified- 

. 
by the Proposal Truateq.arid (b) the Final Bid 

-complieswith„ amongotherthings, The ibilowingrequirements; 

04. it: includes a:letter stating duttAhe Qualified Bidder's. offer. IS itteVoesble until 
earlier of (i) the approval by the Court of a.-Successful Bid, arid Cu) thirty (3p) 
days foilowing the Phase-: Bid Ocadtim, provided. that  if such Qualified Bid* is 
selected 41;:s the Successful 'Bidder,:  its offer Will reitaiii irrevocable until the. 
Closing of the transaction with the SuccesSfaBidd 

(b) it includes Written evidence of.. firth irrevocable. Cotrafttoitt for all required. 
financing, or other evidence of the financial ability of such Qualified Bickla to 
consummate the proposed transaction, that will allow..the Proposal Truitee,. 
make a reasonable 'determination as to the Qualified Bidder's financial and other 
caw:Mattes:to. consummate the transaction contemplated by-its-Final :Bid; 
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(e) SOS Outlimpirehase price range inCanadian..41411=1:utTLTA dollar equivalenti 
including details '.910*.4bilitiieStO be assumed by the Waffled Bick104.,AlOPIk 
with a:  aeseription:as to. how :the .0ualified Bidder intends to valud fiat working 
Aapitaiof tbeftsinost 

,00 it describes the Property'll ii&sfirieluded its Well as the: Property to be exclude 
divested sir disclaimed prior to closing, if aim 

10, it  41010;10;f011 4411.1t§:.iirti*O.OPc0;1  10400 who 1411Iiec9P* 
employees; of the l':`Qualified: Mader. and provisions' setting out the.,  to: .A.,•041:j  
eonditions ofemploymeht forgoritihuirisvmproyees;. 

Ift it iiiolgdg 00411$ ;any iltiothog§ be. assumed, by'the Qualified Riddef" 

#41 istisliotuaidifittattlwpothiett0000thgraiihg:: 

itiwouiorimolf-outcome formed due diligence by the Qualified  

aldoingfikamtow,-, 

0q -rfonykiito1944.11010mnityq:01-0,11:..ort
i  i
:

O
tytirW

r
I
a
lt
a
MitOyttig 41140564tilit 

in theFinal anitthe complete tern such. ti 

if outlines any anticipated regulatory and otherapprovals re ' At ifred- to ..4o.se the; :(1) 
• 

ti ansAfiOn: 444!.tikoititiolpatedgiffg ilalne, ,anti arty ntie p t d 40:11047000.47(Yt-: 
obtainingoih, approvals; 

Li) .j1400tift6j Wit11,-.riai'llembir4)111*.;0060:401$:411q -lqasp§. 4(m:4Oleo Bidder wishes::  
to IltglitridAtILOSpdt, :details alhd Qualified t der' the  
the trea.h.mt  of elated cure costs :(0d Droxides...:Adeqyalo. asurange,:or.flitpre, 
perfOrrOnee thetetincler); '04 It identifies. with particularity 'any exebutoty: 
•.eotitractor unexpired leasetheitissuluptiotturidassionmencewlifeitisAtoridition, 

--it:prOVidOt tollgigtoogo; 

kp li ineludeae4ilenee4 Inforin.fatia:::8titistailtOreitsonabir satisfaetotrivihe.Proposal 
T.rnSte.ei amt4ori.z4tipil and :approval ..frpqr, Q4ialifio.4 
ifirettors (or torriptitable: goiretriliv body) with respect to. the Submissit iaa. 

.g.NOCIIIiita4o.tbrpfratil 0:1041144011.0-tfaaS,WW:cordertIpliite4VAtiO0 

lids : go00:#10010 by 4*0-.00010-4005,_$it "poi:0(11;4o the :fox.  
bytha/Op0S.a.Tand.4:;Of SOW: otliertia. .fiatisfer.00-.4 bank account  

acceptable to,:fligirit000mtutio(00„.pay4W(o.,  the order orthe proposal. Trot* 
. iii ttlist,iii.dn nest less than t0026,,Oftliesputehasevrice•jo beheld: 
artd dealt: witilihvapccAtirimWith thetexintaf.the131A,;$$P; 

it coritaii~s other ihfofholooeassoioly.it000stoos:sbyithcp.oposai.Tri4tee; 

•Itir.received, .theliasedilid:Deadlinqantl 

:NY 
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it includes an aeknoWledgementandsepresentation that the 'Qualified Bidder: (a). 
. . 

has relied solely !VOA its own j.fidependent review, investigation and/orinspeotiOa 
of any documents and/or the assets to be acquired and liabilities to be assumed 
nlalOng.i Final Aid; and (b) did not rely upon,any written or oral statements; 
representations, prottists warranties or gnatinnees•.whatsoeVer,:whetfier ekpress. 
or Implied #3y operation of law or otherwise) made by. the Proposal Trustee; the. 
Debtors or the,  Lender, regarding any :Matter or 'thing,. itteliiditig, without 
limitation,. the Debtors, the Property, the business the :assets to be acquired or 
liabilities to be <assu>ri assumed or,  the .completeness of :any information: provided in 
connection therewith, except as expressly stated in the purchase .and Sale 
:agreement. 

The Proposal Ttosto Tri4y valve compliance with any one orintPre  of the requirements 
.-specified above:and deem such Final Bid to be a Qualified Bid, provided that doing to 
:shall not constitute waiver by the Proposal Trustee of the requirements-of the fOregoing 
paragraph or an obligation can the part of the Proposal TrUstee. tO:dpsignatos:any other' 
Final Bid as. a..Qualited Bid.: The .Proposel Trustee, will be under ,no obligation. to 
negotiate of extend:44104041** to, 04QUalifted.laiddet,. 

EiVallUatiOn of Qualified lads 

20, -The Proposal Trustee, It consultation with the Lender, will .reView each.,Finai 
received,. Fdr thepurposeof such consultation and evaluations, the Proposal.  Trustee. may 
regyeatektrifieationotthc terms of:  ny Final Bid, 

27.. Waltiation :criteria may include, but :are not Bruited to items such as (a) the purchase 
price and net value (including assumed: liabilities :and other ,_obligations to be perfOrmod 
by the Qualified Bidder); (b) the: rain, irrevocable COMMitinent fOr ifinatteing the 
transaction; (c). the Claims likely to: be' created by such Final Bidinlelation to other Final 
Bids; (d) the ..cotinteiparties,to the transaction; (e) the terms of the proposed transaction 
.490010.00; (I) other fa0tor. affecting the :speed, :00aitity. linci value of the transaction 
(including;  any regulatory approvals; required to close, the transaction; .:(g) planned, 
treatment of (h) the assets included or 1000.4.00 ftot to_ •(j) 
proposed treatment of-the, employees;. (J) -any transition ...services required from thef 
DebtorspostieloSingand any related restructuring costs; and. (k) the likelihood and tirhing 
:of consctnoating the tranSatticat 

2$. If:one-or more Qualified Bids is received or so designated by the Proposal Trustee, the:. 
Proposal Trustee, exercising its reasonablebusineasjudgrnent and following COnSUltatien 
with the Lender, may select the most favourable Qualified Bidts) (each, -a "Successful 

whereupon. the,  Debtors shall proceed to negotiate and sgthr.t. t‘kIc terms 'of. a 
:definitive agreement with the :applicable Qualified Bidder: The terms of any :such; 
definitive agreement-Mat be Acoeptible to the Proposal Trustee and twtenctecri each in 

29. Following the Phase .2 :Bid Deadline, The Proposal Trustee specifitally reservesitsrighttO: 
negotiate With any Qualified Bidder with xespeat ,to ,any provision of its Final Bid or to• 
request.  r agree to any changes in-any such Final Bid. The Proposal Trustee May choote 
to take such steps with respect to one ofmore Qualified.Bidder IAA the Proposal' Trustee., 

(P) 
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shall have no obligation to negotiate identical terms with, or extend identical terms to, 
each Qualified Bidder. The PropoSal Trustee reserves its;  light to request some, but not, 
all, Qualified Bidders submit a. revised Final Bid reflecting improved terms .or other 
amendments tequeited by the Proposal TruOm, The Proposal Trustee will be under no 
obligation to provide' to each Qualified Bidder the opportunity to iniprave the terms 
any Final Bid submitted so the Proposal Trustee following the Phase '2 Deadline, 

Phase 2 Guidelines 

30. If the Proposal Trustee ‘determines thaino Qualified Bid has been. received at the, end.Pt 
Phase 2, the Proposal Trustee may, in its sole and absolute discretion;  designate one 
more Final Bids as, a Qualified Bid. If no Qualified Bid is -received or designated by the 
Proposal Trustee, any of theLender, the Proposal Trustee Or the Debtetis may apply to the 
Couit_for further advice and directions, including with respect to the. terniiriatiorrof the 
Sae Process. 

Approval Motion for Successful. Bid  

31. The Debtors will bring a motion before She Court (the ""Approval Motion") for auDrder 
approving the Stccetsful Bid(s) autherizing the Debtors to entet into any and all 
necessary agreements with respect to• the Successful Bid(s) and to undertao such other 
actions asMaybe necessary OraPpropriste to, give effect to the SticoeSSful Biri(S). 

32. The Approval Motion will be held on a'  ateto be-sehedutedbythetourt 'upon inCitiOn by 
the Debtors. The Approval Motion may be adjourned or rescheduled by she Debtors or 
the PropOsal. Tryst; on notice to the Lender, by an announcement of the adjourned date 
at.the Approval Motion and without the.need foreny further notice thereof, provided :that 
in no circumstance shall 1.11q, Approval 'MOtion bre ,Adionioz1 or rescheduled beyond 
December 8, 2017. 

33. All Qualified Bids (other than the Successful Bid) will be cfemed rejected on the date of 
approval of the Sucees,sfid 13icl(s) by the Court. 

Deposits 

34. All DepoSittl.vill be retained by the Proposal Trustee and invested in an interest. bearing 
trust account, ;If is a Successfid Bid, the DepgPit (Otis aedrued interest) paid bythe 
(Successful BidilerWhose bid is approved at the Approval Motion will be :applied to the 
purchase. price to be paid by the .Successful Bidder upon closing of the =approved 
transaction and will be non4efundable. The,  Deposits (plus applicable interest) of 
:Qualified. Bidders not selected AS the Successful Bidder(s) 'be returned to such. 
bidders within 5 Business Days Of the date upon which the Successful:Bid is approved by 
the Court If there is no Successful Bid, then, subject to she following paragraph, all 
DepoSits_(plus,appiieable interest) will be returned to the bidders Within 5 BOSiness Dayt, 
of the date upon which the.Sale Process is terminated in accordancewith.the BIA SSP. 

35 If a Successful Bidder breaches its obligations under the terms of the Sale Process, its' 
DepoSit plus intete$ shall be forfeited as liquidated damages and tot as a penalty. 
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,Anurovils  

36. For the avoidance of doubt, the approvals required pursuant to the terms hereof:are in 
addition to, and not hi substitution for, any other approvals required pursuant tb the NOT 
Proceedings or any statute or as otherwise required at law in order to implement a 
Successful.Bid..  

Amendment 

37, The Proposal Trustee may vary or amend the BIA SSP (including, vvithont 
extending the Phase 1 Bid Deadline or the Phase 2 Bid Deadline): with the consentof the 
Lender or the. approval of the Court. 

38'. The Sale Process does*, and will not be interpreted, to, Create arty ediftittepal Or Other 
legal relationship between4he Propotal Till-Mee:or the Debtors and any Qualified Bidder 
or any other person, other than as specifiCally set forth in kclefinitiveagreement that may 
be signed with the DebtOrs, At any time dnring the Sale Process:, the Proposal Trustee 
may apply to the Coutt for advice and directions with respect .to the disohurge: of its 
power and duties hereunder, 

"As Is; Where Is"  

3g. Any sale of the Property hy the Debtors will, be Ontul "as IS, where is" baSIS-as.!.at *dine 
of closing .and Withont Surviving representations or warranties. of any kind, nature, or 
description by the' Debtors, the.Propostil Trustee, the Lender or.nny of their :respective 
affiliates, 40vWits, agerits •c)rlepkesentatiVes)  except to-the extent' otherwise provided 
under :a definitive agreement With a Successful Bidder executed. and delivered by the 
Debtors. Neither the Preposal 'Trustee,:  the Debtors the Lender nor any of their 
respective affiliates, adViSors, agents ,or:representatives: makes any representation or 
warranty as to title, description,. fitness:for purpoSe, Merchantability, quantity, condition§ 
or quality of 'any of the Property or the accuracy or completeness of the information 
contained in any of the 'laser, Confidential Information. Memorandum .or thO Data 
ROOrn, except to the extent otherwise provided by the Debtors under a. definitive 
agreement with a Suecesskul Bidder executed and delivered by the Debtors, The DebtorS 
are not replied to inspect or count, tl provide any inspection .or counting, of the 
Property or any part thereof 'and :each Qualified Bidder shall be :deemed, at its 'own 
expense, to have relied entirety on its awn inspection and investigation with respect to the 
Property. It shall be the. Successful Bidder's sole responsibility to. obtain,: at .its own 
expense, any: consents to such transfer and any further documents assurances which .are 
necessary or desirable in the circiainstances. 'Without limiting the generality' of 'the 
foregoing, any and all conditions, warranties and representations expressed or-implied 
pursuant to the. Soto of 'Clow& Act. (Ontario) 40.:. net:apply to the sale of the Property and 
-shall. be waived by the Successful Bidder. 

Free Of Anv And. All Claims and Interests  

40. As part of the Approver Motion, the Debtors will seek an .order vesting hi the Successful 
Bidder all of the right, title and interest of the pezbtors to that pint of-the Property subject 
lb the Successful Bid free and clear of all pledges,- liens, security interests, encumbrances, 
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claims, charges, optima and interest* prt Dr 4gaipSt the. p000ny (e000.00yebt,. 
"clahrs:und Interests") ;$tich.clArprikand'Interests will attach 64 to the net proceeds 
of the' sale. of such:Throperty (without yre:tudice to anyclaims causes ofaction regarding 

yallIOW or efOrCeobilltS!.:theiV4 *Opt the 0404 otherwise set forth in 
ft. definitive oreerrient with a: SuccessfaMidder, 

No Obligation to Conchuica Transaction 

41, The highest :or any: Final ilid'reeeNed'pursuantto the BIA SSP w411 nptzePPPs4Fily be 
accepted In Addition,..* any tiinc Oft the Sale Process; 11*.VON3.001 TtAW'rooy 
terminate the .131A :S8P,1 and shall ••ptovide notice of such a decision Ouallizied 
fildders. 

:Further :Orders  

42. At. any, time attrina.the Sale Piocess, the Proposal Trustee may 0 Ty to:the: Court-  t 1r 
A0i.00:•:alid directions with respect-  tolhOischarge- ritiWerattiii tilts hereunder, 
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Addren? 

consimilg  rno. 
TI) South 'r0Wer 
'79 Wellington StitglIVeSt 
,:$,,uite 2010, PO Box 104. 
Toronto, ON :MAK I Cif 

mi vi_Ltt ,411,1lL ixY1 za* 
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In the Matter of the Notice of Intention to make a Proposal of 

Dundee Energy Limited Partnership and Dundee Oil & Gas. Limited 
Notes to the Cash Flow Statement 

For the fourteen week period eliding May 18, 2018  

1. Purpose of the Cash Flow Statement 

Dundee Energy Limited Partnership and Dundee Oil & Gas Limited (together the.  
"Debtors") have prepared the attached forecast for the period February 10, 2018 
to May 18, 2018 (the "Cash Flow Period") and the accompanying notes 
(collectively the "Cash Flow Statement") in support of the proposal (the 
"Proposal") that it filed under the Bankruptcy and insolvency Act ("BIA") on 
August 15, 2017. The. Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with 
the Report on Cash Flow Statement by the Debtors (Form 30 under the BIM and 
also with the Trustee's Report on Cash Flow Statement (Form 29 under the BIA), 
each appended to the Cash Flow Statement. 

The Debtors have prepared the Cash Flow Statement based on probable and 
hypothetical assumptions that reflect the Debtors' planned course of action for the 
Cash Flow Period. Management is of the opinion that; as at the date of filing the 
Cash Flow Statement, the assumptions used to develop the projection represent 
the most probable set of economic conditions facing the Debtors and that the 
assumptions used proved a reasonable basis for and are consistent with the 
purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, 

The Cash Flow Statement has been developed pursuant to s.50(6) of the BIA and 
is in support of the Proposal. The information contained in the Cash Flow 
Statement is subject to changing assumptions and/or receipt of new or additional 
information and actual results may vary. The Cash Flow Statement should not be 
used for any other purpose and creditors are cautioned that the information 
provided in the Cash Flow Statement could vary based on changing future 
circumstances.. 

2. Global Cash Flow Assumptions 

The Debtors will operate as a going concern and will continue to make interest 
payments on its secured loan (the "Credit Facility") with National Bank of 
Canada (the "Bank") as cash flow permits. The Debtors have sufficient cash on 
hand and borrowing availability under the Credit Facility to maintain operations 
through the Cash Flow Period. 

3. Oil and Gas Revenue 

The Debtors' oil and gas revenue is the product of NYMEX futures settlement 
pricing as of January 16, 2018 and its expected production forecast. The. Debtors' 
production forecast is based on historical results and decline rates. Oil and gas 
revenue is received between the 2e and 25th of the month in the following 
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month. (Le. February production revenue would be received on Mardi 20th  — 
25th).  

4. Processing and Other Revenue 

Processing and Other Revenue is derived from the Debtors' expected marketing 
and royalty revenue on third party production which is directed through its 
processing facilities. Processing and other revenue is assumed to be received on 
the 22"d day of the following month._ 

5. Royalties 

The Debtors' monthly royalty expense is a product of the Debtors' expected 
production revenues and freehold, crown and gross overriding royalty 
percentages. The freehold and crown rate is 12.5% for the Debtors' Ontario 
production which includes all fields except the Mikwan field in Alberta. The 
Mikwan crown rate is 5%. The gross overriding royalty rate differs between 
production field but ranges from 0% for its offshore production to 10.5% for its 
Mikwan production, The total royalties including freehold, crown and gross 
overriding royalties over the Debtors' different production fields range from 
12.5% to 18.5%. 

6. Operating Expenses 

The Debtors' monthly operating expenses are based on historical expenses 
including but not limited to well and equipment maintenance costs, land rental 
expenses, utilities, transportation and regularly scheduled well workovers: The 
Debtors' operating expenses, excluding transportation, are related to but not 
dependant on monthly production, Whereas transportation expenses are a product 
of monthly production and the Debtors' historical transportation costs for either 
oil or gas. Based on negotiation with vendors following August 15, 2017 (the date 
the Notice of Intention to Make a Proposal was filed) monthly transportation costs 
for natural gas are forecast to be paid at the beginning of each month in advance 
of the monthly transportation services being provided. 

7. Payroll 

The payroll includes both salaried office employees and field staff as well as 
employee benefits. The Debtors' payroll is funded a minimum of two business 
days prior to the 15th  and end of the month. 

S. Other G&A 

Other G&A includes but is not limited to office rent and miscellaneous office 
expenses. Other G&A is assumed to be paid in weekly vendor settlement 
payments as they come due in the normal course of business, 
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9. Interest & Financing Fees 

Interest and financing fees are the interest payments owed by the Debtors to the 
Bank under the-  Credit Facility. Interest and financing fees are assumed to be paid 
on the last day of the month. 

10. Abandonment- DisburSententS 

Abandonment disbursements relate to the expenses incurred as the. Debtors' 
complete the government mandated well abandonments, including abandonment 
related payroll expenses. The Cash Flow assumes abandonment related activities 
will commence in March as weather conditions are expected to be- satisfactory for 
the Debtor to begin preparing to work on its wells in Lake Erie; however the 
Debtors' ability to continue with its currently planned offshore and onshore 
abandonment schedule is reliant on the weather and crop harvest conditions; 
Abandonment operating expenses (Le. non abandonment payroll related) are 
assumed to be paid in weekly vendor settlement payments as they come due in the 
normal course of business. Abandonment payroll is paid on a bi-weekly basis. 

POW Rights 

P&NG -rights relate to land rental payments on- undeveloped land. P&NG: rights 
are assumed to- be paid at the beginning of each month as they come due- for 
annual renewal, 

11 Restructuring Expenses 

Restructuring expenses relate to the professional fees to be incurred in connection 
with the Proposal proceeding, including expenses of the Debtors' counsel, Trustee 
and its counsel and, the Bank and its counsel. 

Credit Facility 

The Credit Facility allows a maximum draw of $58 million as per its underlying 
credit facility agreement. The Credit facility consists of a $57.9 million operating 
line and a MasterCard with a $100,000 limit. 
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District of; Ontario 
Division No. 09 — Toronto 
Court No. 31,-458352 
Estate No. 

FORiM 29 

Trustee's Report on Cash-Flow Statement 
(Paragraphs 50(6)(b) and 50.4(2)(b) of the Act), 

The attached statement of projected cash flow of Dundee Energy Limited Partnership and Dundee Oil & Gas Limited, as 
of the 10th day of February 2018, has been prepared by the management of the insolvent person (or the insolvent debtor) for the 
purpose described in the notes attached, using the-probable and hypothetical assumptions set out in the notes attached. 

Our review consisted of inquiries, analytical procedures and discussions related to information supplied to us by: the 
management and employees of the insolvent person; or the insolvent person. Since hypothetical assumptions need not be 
supported, our procedures with respect to them were limited to evaluating whether they were consistent with the purpose of the 
projection. We have also reviewed the support provided by management; or the insolvent person for the probable assumptions 
and preparation and presentation of the projection, 

Based on our review:, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that, in all material respects, 

a) the hypothetical assumptions are net consistent with the purpose of the projection; 

b) as at the date of this report, the probable assumptions developed are not suitably supported and consistent with 
the planS of the insolvent person or do not provide a reasonable basis for the projection, given the hypothetical 
assumptions; or 

c) the projection does not reflect the probable and hypothetical assumptions, 

Since the projection is based on assumptions regarding future events, actual results will vary from the information 
presented even if the hypothetical assumptions occur, and the variations may be material. Accordingly, we express no assurance 
as to whether the projection will be achieved. 

The projection has been prepared solely for the purpose described in the notes attached and readers are cautioned that 
it may not be appropriate for other purposes. 

Dated at the city of Toronto in the Province of Ontario, this 7111 day of Pebruary 2018 

FTI Consulting CanadaInc. —Licensed Insolvency Ttustee,  
Per: 

Jeffrey Rosenberg — Lieensal InsoNel ustee 
TD Waterhouse Tower 
79 Wellington St. West 
Toronto ON IVI5K 1G8 



FTI Consulting Canada Inc. — Licensed Insolvency Trustee 
Per: 

Jeffrey Rosenberg — License Insol. lac Trustee 
TD Waterhouse Tower 
79 Wellington St. West 
Toronto ON MSK 108 
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District of: Ontario 
Division No. 09 — Toronto 
Court No. 3]-458352 
Estate No. 

FORM 29 - Attachment 
Trustee's Report on Cash-Flow Statement 

(Paragraphs 50(6)(b) and 50.4(2)(b) of the Act) 

Parpose: 
To show the Company has sufficient cash to fund Operations through the 14 week period ending May 18, 2018 

Projection Notes: 
See attached Cash Flow Assumption Notes 

Dated at the city of Toronto in. the Province of Ontario, this 7th day of February 2018 
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DistrIct.of:. Ontario 
Division Nix 05- Toronto 
Court No: 31,083.52 
Estate No. 

FORM 30 

Report otitail,Flow Statement by- the- P0SO Makingthe.PrOPOsat 
(Pafagraphs.50(0)(4).And..50„4(2)(4-of the Act) 

The Management. of Dundee Energy Limited Partnership and r.S.undee Oil &Gas Limited; hasclhaVe. deVeloped:the; 
assumptions end prepared the attached. statement ofprojected. cash flow of theinsolycntperson, as of the..1- 06  day .of February 
201.8 consisting of weekly Joash Rows until the week ending May 1.8,208 prepared on the basis of the notes attached 
the cash. flow statement: 

. . 
The hypothetical asturoptions are **viable and, consistent with the. purpose .of-the projection described. in the. 

notes- attached, and. the probable assumptions are- suitably supported and consistent with the plans of the insolvent persOn:and. , 
provide a.reasonable-basisfor the,projection..All such. assumptions are 'disclosed in the ndles.attOlitd.. 

SineClhe.prejection- is. based on fiSsumptions regarding future o.ventS,Actual multi wiii vary:frorn theinforMation. 
.preserited,,andlhe:variatiOns may be. Material, 

'The projection has been prepared solely for 'the purpose described the nOtes tittaChed, Tiara a. set of 
hypothetical. aid probable.assurnptioriS set out in the notes Attached, Coifsequently,read.ers are..oanticirled:that it,inay riot be 
uppkoPriate for other purposes. 

Dated 'at the city of Toronto in the Province of Ontario, this 71h  day of 20r8.  

PIS LvCtr Pit eso-r 1.0 r‘itiP\ .ati FmA  "'till tCipn - -1 'Name and title of signing officer 
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District of; Ontario 
Division 'No. 09 — Toronto 
court No. 21-458352. 

atate'NO. 

FORM. 30 = Attachment 
Report on -CashiFlow Statentent by the Person Making the Proposal 

(Paragraphs. 50(6)(c) and 504(2)(0 of the Ad).  

Pm pose: 
To show the Company has sufficient cash to fund operations through the 14 week period ending May I-84018 

PrcOction Notes: 
See . attached Cash. Flew Assumption Notes 

• Dated at the-.city of Torontoo in the Proyinee•of Ontario this 79)  day of February 2018 

S. i r prq-s ON I" ern 1,1 t•iel e pyt fILKirit 
Neme and tille.of signing Officei• 
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DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(UNAUDITED) 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 



0089 

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE GENERAL PARTNER FOR 
UNAUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 

The accompanying unaudited annual financial statements of Dundee Energy Limited Partnership (the "Partnership") as at and for 
the year ended December 31, 2017 (the "2017 Unaudited Annual Financial Statements") are the responsibility of the management 
of the general partner of the Partnership, Dundee Oil and Gas Limited (the "General Partner"), and the Board of Directors of the 
General Partner. 

The 2017 Unaudited Annual Financial Statements have been prepared by management of the General Partner, on behalf of its 
Board of Directors, in accordance with the accounting policies disclosed in Note 3 to the 2017 Unaudited Annual Financial 
Statements. In preparing the 2017 Unaudited Annual Financial Statements, management of the General Partner has made 
informed judgments and estimates in accounting for transactions that were not complete at the date of the statement of financial 
position. In the opinion of management of the General Partner, the 2017 Unaudited Annual Financial Statements have been 
prepared within acceptable limits of materiality and comply with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Management of the General Partner has established processes which are in place to provide it with sufficient knowledge to 
support management representations that it has exercised reasonable diligence that (i) the 2017 Unaudited Annual Financial 
Statements do not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated, or that is 
necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it is made, as at the date of, and for the 
years presented by the 2017 Unaudited Annual Financial Statements; and (ii) the 2017 Unaudited Annual Financial Statements 
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Partnership, as at the date 
of and for the years presented by the 2017 Unaudited Annual Financial Statements. 

The Board of Directors of the General Partner is responsible for reviewing and approving the 2017 Unaudited Annual Financial 
Statements and for ensuring that management of the General Partner fulfills its financial reporting responsibility. 

Management of the General Partner recognizes its responsibility for conducting the Partnership's affairs in compliance with 
established financial standards, and applicable laws and regulations, and for maintaining proper standards of conduct for its 
activities. 

(signed) Bruce Sherley (signed) Lucie Presot 
President Vice-President, Chief Financial Officer and 

Corporate Secretary 

Toronto, Canada 
February e, 2018 

NOTICE TO READER 
The 2017 Unaudited Annual Financial Statements have been prepared by and are the responsibility of management of the 
General Partner. These financial statements have not been reviewed by the Partnership's independent external auditor. 

DECEMBER 31, 2017— DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 1 
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DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

(Unaudited) 

(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) 

Note 

As at 
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 

ASSETS 
Current 
Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaids and security deposits 
Inventory 
Due from related parties 

5 

12 

$ 3,736 $ 1,419 
2,095 2,729 

797 690 
310 335 

2,425 3,083 
9,363 8,256 

Non-current 
Oil and gas properties 6 102,819 131,355 

$ 112,182 $ 139,611 

LIABILITIES 
Current 
Bank loan 7 $ 57,400 $ 57,400 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6,569 4,305 
Derivative financial liabilities 10 2,275 
Decommissioning liabilities a 1,202 3,965 

65,171 67,945 
Non-current 

Decommissioning liabilities 8 50,504 51,555 
115,675 119,500 

PARTNERS' CAPITAL 9 (3,493) 20,111 
$ 112,182 $ 139,611 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited financial statements. 

Going Concern Assumption (Note 2) 

Commitments (Note 13) 

On behalf of the Board of Directors of 

DUNDEE OIL AND GAS LIMITED, 

as General Partner 

(signed) Bruce Sherley (signed) Lucie Presot 

Director Director 

DECEMBER 31, 2017— DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 2 
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DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 

(Unaudited) 

(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, Note 2017 2016 
REVENUES 
Oil and gas sales $ 26,381 $ 23,891 
Royalties (3,951) (3,581) 

Net sales 22,430 20,310 

Production expenditures 11 (10,929) (12,385) 
Depreciation and depletion 6 (8,326) (9,031) 
General and administrative 11 (3,692) (2,534) 
Gain (loss) on fair value changes of derivative financial instruments 10 1,299 (1,965) 
Impairment of oil and gas properties 6 (18,973) (11,934) 
Interest and other items in net loss 6 183 (1,045) 
Interest expense 7, 8 (5,320) (4,399) 
Foreign exchange loss (276) (112) 

NET LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR Iiik, YEAR $ (23,604) $ (23,095) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited financial statements. 

DECEMBER 31, 2017— DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 3 
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DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS' CAPITAL 

(Unaudited) 

(expressed in thousands. of Canadian dollars) 

Partners' Capital Deficit Total 
Balance, December 31, 2015 $ 74,399 $ (31,193) $ 43,206 
For the year ended December 31, 2016 

Net loss - (23,095) (23,095) 
Balance, December 31, 2016 74,399 (54,288) 20,111 
For the year ended December 31, 2017 

Net loss (23,604) (23,604) 
Balance, December 31, 2017 $ 74,399 $ (77,892) $ (3,493) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited financial statements. 

DECEMBER 31, 2017— DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 4 
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DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW 

(Unaudited) 

(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) 

For the years ended December 31, Note 2017 2016 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net loss for the year 
Adjustments for: 

$ (23,604) $ (23,095) 

Depreciation and depletion 6 8,326 9,031 
Impairment of oil and gas properties 6 18,973 11,934 

(Gain) loss on fair value changes of derivative financial instruments 10 (2,275) 2,254 

Reclamation expenditures 8 (3,449) (570) 

Other 1,867 2,525 
(162) 2,079 

Changes in: 
Accounts receivable 634 (968) 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,770 2,459 
Prepaids and security deposits (107) 155 

Inventory 25 41 

CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,160 3,766 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Amounts repaid by (advanced to) related parties 12 658 (615) 

Repayment of bank loan arrangements 7 - (1,402) 

CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 658 (2,017) 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Investment in oil and gas properties 6 (501) (686) 
Other 326 

CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVIIIES (501) (360) 

INCREASE IN CASH 2,317 1,389 

CASH, BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,419 30 

CASH, END OF THE YEAR $ 3,736 $ 1,419 

Interest paid $ 3,948 $ 3,523 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited financial statements. 

DECEMBER 31, 2017— DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 5 
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DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Unaudited) 

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 
Tabular dollar amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars 

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

Dundee Energy Limited Partnership (the "Partnership" or "DELP") was formed as a limited partnership under the laws of 
the Province of Ontario for the purpose of creating value for its partners through the exploration, development, production 

and marketing of oil and natural gas properties in southern Ontario, Canada. The Partnership's registered office is located at 
Suite 2100, 1 Adelaide Street East, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, MSC 2V9. 

Dundee Oil and Gas Limited was incorporated on July 16, 2008 and is the general partner of the Partnership. The general 

partner is responsible for the management of the Partnership in accordance with the terms and conditions of the partnership 

agreement. Dundee Energy Limited, a public company, is the sole limited partner. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION 

These financial statements of the Partnership as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017, with comparative information 

as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016, have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), and with interpretations of the 

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") which the Canadian Accounting Standards Board 

has approved for incorporation into Part 1 of the CPA Canada Handbook — Accounting. The Board of Directors of Dundee 
Oil and Gas Limited, as general partner, approved these financial statements for issue on February •, 2018. 

On January 31, 2017, the Partnership entered into a forbearance agreement with its lender (the "Original Forbearance 

Agreement"), in respect of loans made by the lender under a credit agreement dated July 2, 2012, as amended (Note 7). 
Under the terms of the Original Forbearance Agreement, provided that certain ongoing conditions were met, the lender to 

the Partnership agreed to forbear from exercising its enforcement rights and remedies arising from the Partnership's failure 

to reduce the amounts borrowed pursuant to such credit facility, to amounts that correspond to, or fall below the borrowing 
base available to the Partnership, as determined by its lender with reference to the Partnership's reserves and the current and 
projected market prices for oil and natural gas, as determined by the Partnership's lender, until the earlier of May 15, 2017; 
the occurrence of an event of default under the terms of the credit facility; or the occurrence of a default or breach of 
representation by the Partnership under the Original Forbearance Agreement. 

The Original Forbearance Agreement provided a definitive timeline within which the Partnership was required to complete 
its intended process to identify strategic alternatives, which may have included debt restructuring, a sale of all or a material 
portion of the assets of the Partnership, the outright sale of the Partnership, or a business combination or other transaction 
involving the Partnership and a third party. Under the terms of the Original Forbearance Agreement, the Partnership had 
committed to enter into a binding agreement under an arrangement, which binding agreement was to be satisfactory to its 
lender, by April 7, 2017. 

The lender did not provide its consent to any of the proposals made by the Partnership, and the Original Forbearance 
Agreement expired on May 15, 2017, without resolution. On July 21, 2017, the Partnership received notice from the 
Partnership's lender, demanding repayment of amounts borrowed pursuant to the credit facility by July 31, 2017. On 

DECEMBER 31, 2017— DUNDEE ENERGY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 6 
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August 16, 2017, the Partnership commenced insolvency proceedings by filing a Notice of Intention to Make a Proposal 
("NOI") pursuant to the provisions of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) in order for it to run a court-supervised 
sale solicitation process ("SSP"), with the goal of identifying proposals to purchase some or all of the business, properties or 
assets of the Partnership. The Partnership and the lender have entered into a revised forbearance agreement (the 
"Forbearance Agreement") and the lender is supporting the Partnership in the reorganization proceedings. The Partnership 
has obtained an order from the Ontario Superior Court of Justice (the "Court") approving the terms of the SSP. 

These financial statements have been prepared using accounting principles applicable to a going concern. The going 
concern basis assumes that the Partnership will continue its operations for the foreseeable future, and will be able to realize 
its assets and discharge its liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. The low commodity price 
environment has constrained the Partnership's access to capital under its existing credit facility and otherwise. Without 
access to financing, the Partnership will be challenged to deploy the capital that it requires to maintain its existing reserves 
and production volumes, fund repair and maintenance costs, meet its current financial obligations, including the servicing of 
its debt and its ability to meet decommissioning obligations, and otherwise develop its ongoing business strategy. As at 
December 31, 2017, the Partnership had negative working capital of $55,808,000 (2016 — $59,689,000) and during the year 
then ended, it incurred a net loss of $23,604,000 (2016 — $23,095,000). Furthermore, there can be no assurance that the 
Partnership will be successful in its efforts under the SSP, or that the Court will approve the SSP or any competing bid that 
may emerge from such process. 

The material uncertainty caused by the events described above casts significant doubt upon the Partnership's ability to 
continue as a going concern and the ultimate appropriateness of using accounting principles applicable to a going concern. 
Other than an assessment of the Partnership's ability to continue to develop its exploration properties (Note 6), these 
financial statements do not include any adjustments to the amounts and classification of assets and liabilities that might be 
necessary should the Partnership be unable to continue as a going concern. If the Partnership is not able to continue as a 
going concern, the Partnership may be required to reassess the carrying value of its assets in light of circumstances that 
could result in the realization of its assets and the discharge of its liabilities in other than the normal course of business and 
at amounts different from those reflected in these fmancial statements. These differences could be material. 

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Partnership in the preparation of its financial statements are set out 
below. 

Basis of Measurement 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain financial instruments, 
including derivative financial instruments, which are measured at fair value as determined at each reporting date. 

Foreign Currency 

Functional and Presentation Currency 
These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Partnership's functional currency. 

Transactions 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the Partnership's functional currency using exchange rates prevailing at the 
dates of the transactions. Generally, foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency 
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the 
Partnership's functional currency at each period-end date are recognized in the statement of operations. 
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Inventory 
The Partnership's oil production is stored in oil batteries until such time as it is delivered for sale. Any remaining oil 
production in oil batteries at the end of a reporting period is recognized as inventory in the financial statements and is valued 
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventory includes production costs, including direct overhead costs, 
and depreciation and depletion. Net  realizable value is determined with reference to the relevant average sales price realized 
for oil production during the previous 12 month period, less variable selling expenses. The Partnership's natural gas 
production is immediately interconnected to the gas distribution network and therefore, the Partnership does not hold 
inventory of natural gas. 

Financial Instruments 

The Partnership's financial instruments include cash, accounts receivable, amounts due from related parties, amounts due 
pursuant to bank loan arrangements, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and derivative financial instruments. 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Partnership becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or are 
assigned and the Partnership has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership in respect of the asset. 
Financial liabilities are derecognized when the related obligation is discharged or cancelled, or when such obligation 
expires. 

Classification of financial instruments in the Partnership's financial statements depends on the purpose for which the 
financial instruments were acquired or incurred. Management determines the classification of financial instruments at initial 
recognition. 

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
A financial asset or liability is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in 
the short term. Derivatives, if any, are also included in this category, unless they are designated as hedges. The 
Partnership's derivative financial instruments, which have not been designated as hedges for accounting purposes, have been 
classified in this category. Transaction costs related to these financial instruments are expensed in the statement of 
operations. 

Derivative Financial Instruments 
The Partnership may manage its exposure to changes in commodity prices and associated earnings volatility by periodically 
entering into derivative contracts in accordance with its risk management policy. These derivative contracts are carried at 
fair value and are generally reported as assets in circumstances when they have a positive fair value and as liabilities when 
they have a negative fair value. Both realized and unrealized gains and losses from changes in fair value of these derivative 
contracts are recorded in the statement of operations. 

Loans and Receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market. The Partnership's financial assets that are classified as loans and receivables include cash, accounts 
receivable and amounts due from related parties. Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are initially recognized 
at the amount expected to be received less, when material, a discount to reduce the carrying value of the financial asset to its 
fair value. Subsequently, financial assets classified as loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method, less a provision for impairment as may be required. 

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost 
The Partnership's financial instruments classified as financial liabilities at amortized cost include amounts due pursuant to 
bank loan arrangements and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Financial instruments designated as financial 
liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at the amount required to be paid less, when material, a discount to 
reduce the carrying value of the liability to its fair value. Subsequently, these financial liabilities are measured at amortized 
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cost using the effective interest method. Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 12 
months. Otherwise, they are presented as non-current liabilities. 

Impairment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 
At each reporting date, the Partnership assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset, other than a 
financial asset that is carried in the Partnership's financial statements at fair value, is impaired. A financial asset is impaired 
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event impacted the estimated future cash flows of the financial 
asset in an amount that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence may include significant financial difficulty of the 
obligor or delinquencies in interest and principal payments. If such evidence exists, the Partnership recognizes an 
impairment loss equal to the difference between the carrying value of the financial asset and the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows, discounted using the instrument's original effective interest rate for the financial asset. An 
impairment of a financial asset carried at amortized cost is reversed in subsequent periods if the amount of the loss 
decreased and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized. 

Oil and Gas Properties 
A portion of the Partnership's exploration, evaluation, development and production activities is conducted pursuant to 
working interest arrangements with third parties. Accordingly, these financial statements reflect only the Partnership's share 
of capital expenditures associated with these activities. 

Oil and Gas Development Costs 
The Partnership capitalizes all costs associated with its development expenditures in southern Ontario, including accrued 
costs for decommissioning liabilities. Capitalized costs include the acquisition of oil and gas rights, geological and 
geophysical expenditures, equipment costs and that portion of general and administrative expenses directly attributable to 
these activities. Expenditures that improve the productive capacity or extend the life of a property are capitalized. 
Maintenance and repairs are generally expensed as incurred. 

Capitalized costs associated with properties with proved reserves, adjusted for estimated future costs to be incurred in 
developing such proved reserves, are depleted over estimated proved reserves using the unit of production method. For 
purposes of these calculations, production and reserves of natural gas are converted to barrels on an energy equivalent basis 
at a ratio of 6,000 cubic feet ("6 Mcf') of natural gas to one barrel ("1 bbl") of oil. Depletion rates are updated annually 
unless there is a material change in circumstances, in which case they are updated more frequently. Acquisition costs of 
probable reserves are not depleted or depreciated while under active evaluation for commercial reserves. Costs are 
transferred to depletable costs as proved reserves are recognized. 

Assets used in the development and production of oil and gas properties are depreciated over the estimated economic life of 
the asset. 

Asset Category Depreciation Method Depreciation Rate 
Pipeline infrastructure Unit of production n/a 
Machinery and equipment Straight line 3% to 12% 
Land and buildings Straight line 2% to 5% 
Office equipment, computer hardware and software Declining balance 10% to 35% 

Undeveloped Properties 
Included in oil and gas properties are undeveloped properties on which the Partnership is conducting exploration and 
evaluation activities. The Partnership capitalizes all costs associated with undeveloped properties, except for costs incurred 
before the Partnership has obtained the legal right to explore an area, in which case costs are expensed as incurred. 
Expenditures on undeveloped properties include costs for an area or project for which technical feasibility and commercial 
viability have not yet been determined and may include lease acquisitions, geological and geophysical expenditures, 
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carrying costs of non-productive properties, equipment costs, that portion of general and administrative expenses directly 
attributable to these activities and costs associated with decommissioning liabilities. Technical feasibility and commercial 
viability of a project is considered to be determined when proved or probable reserves are determined to exist, at which time 
the costs are reclassified as development costs, with assigned reserves. 

Impairment of Oil and Gas Properties 
The Partnership evaluates the carrying value of oil and gas properties when events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's 
carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of an asset's fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash inflows ("cash generating units" or "CGUs"). If their carrying value is assessed not to 
be recoverable, an impairment loss is recognized. The Partnership evaluates impairment losses for potential reversals when 
events or circumstances warrant such consideration. 

Decommissioning Liabilities 
A decommissioning liability is recognized when the Partnership has a legal or constructive obligation to plug a well, 
dismantle and remove property, plant and equipment, or complete site restoration work, and when a reliable estimate of the 
liability can be made. The Partnership has estimated its decommissioning liabilities in consultation with third parties and 
such estimates are based on current costs and technology. When a decommissioning liability is recognized, a corresponding 
amount, equivalent to the amount of the obligation, is recognized as part of the cost of related oil and gas properties. 

Decommissioning liabilities are measured at the present value of the expected expenditures required to settle the obligation 
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
obligation. The effect of any changes to decommissioning liabilities, including changes to the underlying estimates and 
changes in market interest rates used to discount the obligation, is added to or deducted from the cost of the related assets. 
Accretion, representing the increase in decommissioning liabilities due to the passage of time, is recognized as interest 
expense. 

Revenue Recognition 
Revenue associated with the Partnership's production and sale of crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids is recognized 
when title is transferred to,the customer and delivery has taken place. A portion of the Partnership's production and sales 
activities is conducted pursuant to working interest arrangements with third parties. Accordingly, these financial statements 
reflect only the proportionate interest of the Partnership in such activities. 

Revenue from oil and gas sales is presented before royalty payments to third parties, including the government and other 
mineral interest owners. Royalties on production are recorded using rates in effect under the terms of contracts with such 
third parties at the time of production. 

Income Taxes 
The Partnership is not a taxable entity. The partners are required to include their proportionate share of any income or loss 
from the Partnership in computing their individual taxable income in any taxation period. Therefore, no income tax 
provision is required in these financial statements. 

Changes in Accounting Policies Implemented During the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

IAS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows" ("IAS 
On January 1, 2017, the Partnership implemented certain amendments to IAS 7, which require that entities provide enhanced 
information about changes in their financial liabilities, including changes from cash flows and non-cash changes. The 
implementation of amendments to IAS 7 had no impact on the Partnership's 2017 Unaudited Annual Financial Statements. 
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Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Existing Standards not yet Effective 

IFRS 9, "Financial Instruments" ("IFRS 9') 
In July 2014, the IASB issued final amendments to IFRS 9, replacing IAS 39, "Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement" ("IAS 39"). IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification, measurement and impairment of 
financial assets, and new requirements related to hedge accounting. IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a 
financial asset is measured at amortized cost or fair value, and replaces the multiple category and measurement models in 
IAS 39. The categorization approach in IFRS 9 focuses on how an entity manages its financial instruments in the context of 
its business model, as well as the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. New hedge accounting 
requirements incorporated into IFRS 9 increase the scope of items that may qualify as a hedged item and changes the 
requirements of hedge effectiveness testing that must be met in order to apply hedge accounting. The requirements of IFRS 
9 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. The Partnership has completed an analysis of the 
requirements of IFRS 9 in order to determine the effect that IFRS 9 will have on its future financial reporting. The 
Partnership does not anticipate any immediate changes to its financial statements resulting from the implementation of IFRS 
9. 

IFRS 16, "Leases" ("1FRS 16') 

In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16, replacing IAS 17, "Leases". IFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model 
and requires the lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases on its balance sheet, providing the reader with greater 
transparency of an entity's lease obligations. Leases to explore for or use oil or natural gas are specifically excluded from 
the scope of IFRS 16. IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with early adoption 
permitted. The Partnership has not yet begun its assessment of the implementation of amendments to IFRS 16, and such 
assessment is scheduled for completion in 2018. 

IFRS 15, "Revenues from Contracts with Customers" ("IFRS 15') 
In April 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15, clarifying the application of certain of its underlying principles, 
including the identification of a performance obligation, and the determination of whether a company is a principal or is 
acting as an agent in the provision of a good or service. The Partnership has completed an assessment of the requirements of 
IFRS 15, including the identification of relevant performance obligations for each of the contracts with customers. It has 
reviewed the determination of expected consideration in respect of each such performance obligation and it has allocated the 
expected consideration to the components of the performance obligations, as appropriate. The Partnership has determined 
that there are no significant differences in the measurement and timing of revenue recognition between the requirements of 
IFRS 15 and the Partnership's current revenue recognition policies. Accordingly, the Partnership does not expect that the 
implementation of IFRS 15 will have a significant effect on the Partnership's financial statements. 

4. CRITICAL JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

The preparation of these financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Partnership to make judgments in 
applying its accounting policies and estimates and assumptions about the future. These judgments, estimates and 
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and other items in net operating earnings or loss, and 
the related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities included in the Partnership's financial statements. The Partnership 
evaluates its estimates on an ongoing basis. Such estimates are based on historical experience and on various other 
assumptions that the Partnership believes are reasonable under the circumstances, and these estimates form the basis for 
making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and other items in 
net operating earnings or loss that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The following discusses the most significant judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that the Partnership has made in the preparation of its financial statements. 
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Oil and Natural Gas Reserves 
The Partnership's proved and probable reserves of oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids are estimated by management. 
The process of estimating proved and probable reserves requires significant judgment in evaluating and assessing available 
geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data, projected rates of production, estimated commodity price forecasts 
and the timing of future expenditures, all of which are, by their very nature, subject to interpretation and uncertainty. The 
evaluation of reserves is an ongoing process impacted by current production, continuing development activities and 
changing economic conditions. The aggregate of capitalized costs, net of certain costs related to unproved properties, and 
estimated future development costs are depleted using the unit of production method based on estimated proved reserves. 
Changes in estimates of proved and probable reserves may materially impact the determination of recoverability of the 
carrying value of the Partnership's oil and gas properties, the recorded amount of depletion and depreciation, the 
determination of the Partnership's obligations pursuant to decommissioning liabilities and the assessment of impairment 
provisions. 

Recoverability of the Carrying Value of Exploration and Evaluation Costs on Undeveloped Properties 
The Partnership is required to review the carrying value of its undeveloped properties for potential impairment. Impairment 
is indicated if the carrying value of the Partnership's undeveloped properties is not recoverable. If impairment is indicated, 
the amount by which the carrying value of undeveloped properties exceeds their estimated recoverable amount is charged to 
the statement of operations. 

Evaluating for recoverability during the exploration and evaluation phase requires judgment in determining whether future 
economic benefit from future exploitation, sale or otherwise, is likely. Evaluations may be more complex where activities 
have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment of the existence of reserves. Management must make 
certain estimates and assumptions about future events or circumstances including, but not limited to, the interpretation of 
geological, geophysical and seismic data, the Partnership's financial ability to continue exploration and evaluation activities, 
contractual issues with working interest partners and the impact of current and expected future oil and natural gas prices to 
potential reserves. 

Decommissioning Liabilities 
The Partnership is required to provide for decommissioning liabilities. The Partnership must estimate these costs in 
accordance with existing laws, contracts and other policies. The estimate of future costs involves a number of estimates 
relating to timing, type of costs and associated contract negotiations, and review of potential methods and other technical 
advancements. Furthermore, due to uncertainties concerning environmental remediation, the ultimate cost of the 
Partnership's decommissioning liabilities could differ from amounts provided. 

The estimates of the Partnership's obligations are subject to change due to amendments to applicable laws and regulations 
and as new information concerning the Partnership's operations become available. The Partnership is not able to determine 

the impact on its financial position, if any, of environmental laws and regulations that may be enacted in the future. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Certain financial instruments are recorded in the Partnership's statements of financial position at values that are 
representative of, or approximate fair value. The fair value of a financial instrument that is traded in active markets at each 

reporting date is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial 
instruments carried at fair value, the fair value is determined using valuation techniques. By their nature, these valuation 

techniques require the use of assumptions. Changes in the underlying assumptions of a valuation model could materially 

impact the determination of the fair value of a financial instrument. Imprecision in determining fair value using these 

valuation techniques may affect the amount of net operating earnings or loss recorded for a particular investment in a 
particular period. 
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The Partnership believes that its estimates of fair value are reasonable and appropriate. The Partnership reviews 

assumptions relating to financial instruments on an ongoing basis to ensure that the basis for determination of fair value is 
appropriate. 

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

As at December 31, 2017 2016 

Customers for oil and natural gas production 1,962 $ 2,596 

Third-party drilling receivable 119 119 

Working interest partners 14 14 

2,095 $ 2,729 

6. OIL AND GAS PROPERTIES 

Exploration 
Property, Plant and Equipment and Evaluation 

Oil and Gas 
Development 

Costs 
Pipeline 

Infrastructure 

Machinery 
and 

Equipment 

Land 
and 

Buildings Other 
Undeveloped 

Properties Total 
At December 31, 2015 
Cost 
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment 

$ 160,565 
(74,588) 

$ 27,751 
(8,570) 

$ 27,925 
(7,229) 

$ 4,715 
(139) 

$ 1,740 
(552) 

$ 24,781 $ 247,477 
(91,078) 

Net carrying value, December 31, 2015 85,977 19,181 20,696 4,576 1,188 24,781 156,399 

For the year ended December 31, 2016 
Carrying value December 31, 2015 85,977 19,181 20,696 4,576 1,188 24,781 156,399 
Net additions (1,444) (31) 590 (885) 
Remeasure decommissioning liability (Note 8) (3,194) (3,194) 
Depreciation and depletion (6,686) (957) (1,343) (31) (14) (9,031) 
Impairment (5,000) (6,934) (11,934) 
Net carrying value, December 31, 2016 71,097 18,224 17,909 4,545 1,143 18,437 131,355 

At December 31, 2016 
Cost 157,371 27,751 26,122 4,715 1,709 25,371 243,039 
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment (86,274) (9,527) (8,213) (170) (566) (6,934) (111,684) 
Net carrying value, December 31, 2016 71,097 18,224 17,909 4,545 1,143 18,437 131,355 

For the year ended December 31, 2017 
Carrying value December 31, 2017 71,097 18,224 17,909 4,545 1,143 18,437 131,355 
Net additions - (34) (2) 536 500 
Remeasure decommissioning liability (Note 8) (1,737) - - (1,737) 
Depreciation and depletion (6,015) (930) (1,343) (31) (7) (8,326) 
Impairment (18,973) (18,973) 
Net carrying value, December 31, 2017 63,345 17,294 16,532 4,514 1,134 102,819 

At December 31, 2017 
Cost 155,634 27,751 26,077 4,715 1,707 25,907 241,791 
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment (92,289) (10,457) (9,545) (201) (573) (25,907) (138,972) 
Net carrying value, December 31, 2017 63,345 $ 17,294 $ 16,532 $ 4,514 $ 1,134 - $ 102,819 

Impairment of Oil and Natural Gas Properties 

Impairment of Exploration and Evaluation Properties 
The Partnership's undeveloped properties include properties that have been designated as exploration and evaluation 
properties. The Partnership requires substantial amounts of financial resources to further exploit these properties. At 
December 31, 2017, and in light of restricted financial resources available to the Partnership (Notes 2 and 7), the Partnership 
determined that it was appropriate to impair these assets by $18,973,000, reducing their carried value to $nil. During 2016, 
the Partnership had provided an impairment of $6,934,000 against certain other undeveloped properties that did not have 
any identified commercially viable resources or reserves, also reducing their carried value to $nil. 
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Impairment of Natural Gas Properties 
On June 30, 2016, and in response to the continued decline in the outlook for long-term gas prices, the Partnership 
recognized an impairment loss of $5,000,000 on certain natural gas properties in southern Ontario, reducing their carried 
value to their recoverable amount on June 30, 2016 of $49,753,000. The recoverable amount of these natural gas properties 
was measured based on their value-in-use, determined by application of a discounted cash flow model, using reserves 
volumes and forecasted natural gas prices as provided by independent, third party oil and gas reserve evaluators. 

The Partnership's assessment of impairment relating to its oil and gas properties was determined by an assessment of 
anticipated cash flows relating to specific properties, discounted using a discount rate of 8%. Had the Partnership completed 
its analysis during the year ended December 31, 2016, using a discount rate of 10%, the Partnership's gas properties would 
have been further impaired by $77,000, and its oil properties would have been further impaired by $328,000. 

Disposal of Machinery and Equipment 
In February 2016, the Partnership sold an offshore jack-up platform for proceeds of $88,000. Included in the Partnership's 
financial statements as "Interest and other items in net loss", is a realized loss of $1,494,000 related to the disposal. 

7. BANK LOAN 

The Partnership has established a credit facility with a Canadian Schedule I Chartered Bank secured by the assets of the 
Partnership. 

The credit facility is structured as a revolving demand loan, and is subject to a tiered interest rate structure based on the 
Partnership's net debt to cash flow ratio, as defined in the credit facility. Based on ratios at December 31, 2017, draws on 
the credit facility bore interest at the bank's prime lending rate plus 3.5%. The Partnership is subject to a standby fee of 
0.55% on undrawn amounts under the credit facility. 

The credit facility was secured against all of the oil and natural gas properties owned by the Partnership. In addition to the 
security provided by the Partnership, Dundee Energy Limited assigned a limited recourse guarantee of its units in the 
Partnership as further security pursuant to the credit facility. The credit facility was subject to certain covenants, including 
maintenance of minimum levels of working capital. At December 31, 2017, the Partnership was in compliance with all such 
covenants. 

At December 31, 2017, the Partnership had drawn $57,400,000 (2016 — $57,400,000) pursuant to the credit facility. During 
the year ended December 31, 2017, the Partnership incurred interest expense relating to the credit facility, including bank 
charges, arrangement fees and standby fees, of $3,948,000 (2016 — $3,523,000). 

On January 31, 2017, the Partnership entered into the Original Forbearance Agreement (Note 2) with its lender, pursuant to 
which the lender had agreed, provided that certain ongoing conditions were met, to forbear from exercising its enforcement 
rights and remedies arising from the Partnership's failure to reduce the amounts borrowed pursuant to the credit facility, to 
amounts that correspond to, or fall below the borrowing base available to the Partnership, until the earlier of May 15, 2017; 

the occurrence of an event of default under the terms of the credit facility; or the occurrence of a default or breach of 
representation by the Partnership under the Original Forbearance Agreement. 

The Original Forbearance Agreement provided a definitive timeline within which the Partnership was required to complete 
its intended process to identify strategic alternatives which may have included debt restructuring, a sale of all or a material 
portion of the assets of the Partnership, the outright sale of the Partnership, or a business combination or other transaction 
involving the Partnership and a third party. Under the terms of the Original Forbearance Agreement, the Partnership had 
committed to enter into a binding agreement under an arrangement, which binding agreement was to be satisfactory to its 
lender, by April 7, 2017. 
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The lender did not provide its consent to any of the proposals made by the Partnership and the Original Forbearance 
Agreement expired on May 15, 2017 without resolution. On July 21, 2017, the Partnership and Dundee Energy Limited 

received notice from the Partnership's lender, demanding repayment of amounts borrowed pursuant to the credit facility by 
July 31, 2017. The Partnership was unable to meet the demand made by its lender and accordingly, on August 16, 2017, the 

Partnership commenced insolvency proceedings by filing a NOI pursuant to the provisions of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency 
Act (Canada) in order for it to run a court-supervised SSP, with the goal of identifying proposals to purchase some or all of 

the business, properties or assets of the Partnership. The Partnership and the lender have entered into a Forbearance 

Agreement and the lender is supporting the Partnership in the reorganization proceedings. The Partnership has obtained an 
order from the Court approving the terms of the SSP. 

8. DECOMMISSIONING LIABILITIES 

The carrying amount of the Partnership's decommissioning liabilities is comprised of the expected future abandonment and 
site restoration costs associated with its oil and gas properties and is anticipated to be incurred over 45 years. Abandonment 
and site restoration costs are based on the Partnership's net ownership in the underlying wells and facilities, the estimated 

cost to abandon these wells and facilities and the estimated timing of the costs to be incurred in future periods. 

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2017 2016 
Undiscounted future obligations, beginning of the year 98,556 94,873 
Effect of changes in estimates (2,863) 4,253 
Liabilities settled (reclamation expenditures) (3,449) (570) 
Undiscounted future obligations, end of the year 92,244 98,556 

Changes in the Partnership's estimate of its decommissioning liabilities on an undiscounted basis reflect the impact of 
inflation to the timing of abandonment and site restoration costs. 

The following reconciles the Partnership's decommissioning liabilities on a discounted basis: 

As at and for the years ended December 31, 2017 2016 
Discount rates applied to future obligations 1.64% - 2.15% 0.76% - 2.24% 
Inflation rate 2.00% 2.00% 
Discounted future obligations, beginning of the year $ 55,520 $ 58,408 
Effect of changes in estimates and remeasurement of discount rates (1,737) (3,194) 
Liabilities settled (reclamation expenditures) (3,449) (570) 
Accretion (interest expense) 1,372 876 
Discounted future obligations, end of the year $ 51,706 $ 55,520 

Current 1,202 3,965 
Non-current 50,504 51,555 

51,706 55,520 

As required by statute, the Partnership has provided a security deposit to the Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources in the 

amount of $270,000 in respect of future abandonment costs. 
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9. PARTNERS' CAPITAL 

Partners' capital represents the net assets of the Partnership and is comprised of units in the Partnership and accumulated 

earnings or losses. All Partnership units are of the same class with equal rights and privileges, including equal participation 

in any distribution made by the Partnership. 

10. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

During 2017, the Partnership had entered into certain commodity swap derivative contracts to manage its exposure to 

volatility in the prices received for the sale of the underlying commodities. These derivative instruments were not 

designated as hedging instruments and accordingly, were classified as financial instruments at fair value through profit or 

loss. Therefore, changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments are recorded in the statement of 

operations and comprehensive loss. 

There were no outstanding commodity swap derivative contracts outstanding at December 31, 2017. The Partnership 

determined that the fair value of outstanding commodity swap derivative contracts at December 31, 2016 resulted in a 

liability balance of $2,275,000. 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Partnership recognized a gain of $1,299,000 (2016 — loss of $1,965,000) 

from changes in the fair value of commodity swap derivative contracts, including a realized loss of $976,000 (2016 —

realized gain of $289,000), offset by an unrealized gain of $2,275,000 (2016 — unrealized loss of $2,254,000). 

11. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND PRODUCTION EXPENDITURES BY NATURE 

General and Administrative Expenses 

For the years ended December 31, 2017 2016 

Salary and salary-related 

Corporate and professional fees 
General office 

2,284 $ 
2,424 

782 

2,456 

1,246 
633 

Exploration and development costs 111 95 

Allocation of general and administrative costs (1,909) (1,896) 

3,692 $ 2,534 

Production Expenditures 

For the years ended December 31, 2017 2016 
Labour 3,914 $ 4,397 

Materials, equipment and supplies used 2,914 3,813 
Transportation 608 574 
Utilities 2,300 2,321 
Rental and lease payments 318 262 
Other 875 1,018 

10,929 $ 12,385 
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12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, related party transactions and balances as at and for the 
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as described below. 

Services Arrangement with Dundee Resources Limited 
Dundee Resources Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dundee Corporation, the parent company of the Partnership's 
sole limited partner, Dundee Energy Limited. Dundee Resources Limited provides the Partnership with administrative 
support services as well as geophysical, geological and engineering consultation with regard to the Partnership's activities. 
During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Partnership incurred costs of $497,000 (2016 — $446,000) in respect of these 
arrangements. 

Amounts Due From and Due To Related Parties 
At December 31, 2017, the Partnership had advanced $2,425,000 (2016 — $3,083,000) to Dundee Energy Limited. Amounts 
borrowed from Dundee Energy Limited are non-interest bearing and have no specified term to maturity. 

13. COMMITMENTS 

The Partnership has lease agreements for premises and equipment pursuant to which future minimum annual lease 
payments, exclusive of operating costs and realty taxes, are as follows: 

As at December 31, 2017 
Less than 1 year 180 
Between 1 and 5 years 193 
Thereafter 

14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
There are no financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value in the Partnership's statement of financial position 
as at December 31, 2017. At December 31, 2016, the Partnership had outstanding derivative financial instruments that were 
measured at fair value. In determining the fair value of the outstanding derivative financial instruments, the Partnership 

used a valuation methodology that included significant observable inputs and therefore, it had classified the measurement of 

the derivative financial instruments at Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Risk Management 
The Partnership may be exposed to financial risks due to the nature of its business and the financial assets and liabilities that 

it holds. The Partnership's overall risk management strategy seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the 
Partnership's financial performance. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to 

discharge an obligation. 

The Partnership's accounts receivable are with customers for its oil and natural gas production, with its working interest 

partners in oil and natural gas development and production activities and with third parties. These amounts expose the 

Partnership to risk for non-payment. The Partnership's maximum exposure to credit risk relating to these items 

approximates the carrying amount of these assets on the Partnership's statement of financial position. 
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The Partnership currently markets its production to customers with investment grade credit ratings. Otherwise, the 
Partnership may seek parental guarantees and/or letters of credit prior to transacting with such customers. 

The majority of the Partnership's revenue is from three (2016 — three) core customers, who individually accounted for 34% 
(2016 — 36%), 31% (2016 — 30%), and 29% (2016 — 28%) of total revenue. At December 31, 2017, of the Partnership's 
individual accounts receivable due from customers, approximately 91% (2016 — 95%) was due from these three customers. 

Amounts receivable from working interest partners and from other third parties represent receivables from other participants 
in the oil and natural gas sector, and collection of the outstanding balances may be dependent on industry factors such as 
commodity price fluctuations, escalating costs and the risk of unsuccessful drilling. The Partnership attempts to mitigate the 
credit risk on receivables from working interest partners by obtaining pre-approval of significant capital expenditures. 
Where the Partnership is the operator of properties, it has the ability to withhold production from working interest partners 
in the event of non-payment. 

Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. For 
purposes of this disclosure, the Partnership segregates market risk into three categories: currency risk, fair value risk and 
interest rate risk. 

Currency Risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Partnership is exposed to the risk of changes in the Canadian to U.S. dollar 
exchange rate on sales of oil and natural gas. A 3% change in the foreign exchange translation rate of Canadian to U.S. 
dollars during the year ended December 31, 2017 would have resulted in a change to net earnings of approximately 
$768,000 (2016 — $655,000). 

Fair Value Risk 

Fair value risk is the potential for loss from an adverse movement in market prices of financial instruments, excluding 
movements relating to changes in interest rates and foreign exchange currency rates. Fair value risk includes 
commodity price risk, which is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in commodity prices. 
Commodity prices are influenced by global levels of supply and demand and when realized, may be further impacted 
by changes in the Canadian and U.S. dollar exchange rate. Significant commodity price fluctuations may materially 
impact the Partnership's borrowing base under its bank loan, or its ability to raise additional capital, if required. 

In order to mitigate its exposure to adverse changes in commodity prices, the Partnership has entered into commodity 
swap derivative contracts (Note 10). These derivative instruments are recognized in the financial statements at fair 
value. The fair value of these derivative financial instruments is primarily driven by prices of the underlying 
commodities. Accordingly, the Partnership is exposed to fair value risk in respect of these contracts that is partially 
correlated to changes in commodity prices. There were no outstanding commodity swap derivative contracts at 
December 31, 2017. 

Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The Partnership's primary exposure to interest rate risk is through amounts 
borrowed under its bank loan arrangements. In general, a 50 basis point change in market interest rates during the year 
ended December 31, 2017, would have resulted in a change to net earnings during that period of approximately 
$284,000 (2016 — $293,000). 
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Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities as they become due. The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the Partnership's financial liabilities 
as at December 31, 2017. 

Bank loan 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Current portion of decommissioning liabilities 

Carrying Amount 
57,400 
6,569 
1,202 

65,171 

Contractual Term to Maturity  
Demand facility 
Typically due within 20 to 90 days 
Expected settlement in 2018  

Draws against the Partnership's bank loan arrangements are due on demand. At December 31, 2017, the Partnership was in 
compliance with all required financial covenants pursuant to its bank loan arrangements (Note 7). 

Significant volatility in the underlying prices of commodities has impacted the aggregate amounts that the lender has made 
available to the Partnership. The Partnership mitigates the risk associated with the possible further curtailment of lending 
capacity by actively managing its budgeted cash flow forecast, in consultation with its lender. Otherwise, the Partnership 
mitigates liquidity risk by monitoring operational cash flows, planning its project expenditures and securing financing 
facilities in advance of undertaking significant commitments. 

The Partnership's current financial assets, combined with its current operational cash flows, will not be sufficient to sustain 
its ability to meet its ongoing financial liabilities as they become due, including liabilities related to its bank loan 
arrangements. The Partnership's ability to meet these obligations is therefore partially dependent on the outcome of the SSP 
(Notes 2 and 7) and its ability to identify and implement viable financing or restructuring alternatives. There can be no 
assurance regarding the success of these initiatives. 

15. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Partnership defines the capital that it manages as its working capital. The Partnership's objectives when managing 
capital are to manage its business in an effective manner with the goal of increasing the value of its assets. The Partnership 
regularly monitors its available capital and as necessary, adjusts to changing economic circumstances and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets. 
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Dundee Oil and Gas Limited 
Balance Sheet 

As at December 31, 2016 
(Unaudited) 

ASSETS 
Subscription receivable 
Investment in LP 

$ 100 
1 

Total Assets $ 101 

LIABILITIES 
Subscription payable $ 1 

1 

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 
Share capital 100 

100 

Total Liabilities & Shareholder's Equity $ 101 
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